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Post Box No. 4204,

G & G Associates 176 Daatio

Tel. No: 01-4434985

Shartered Accountants Emai; gga@ifocub.com. .

‘Independent Auditor's Report to
the members of
Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd. as on 32nd
Ashadh 2064 [16th July 2007] together with Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure
and Cash Flow Statement for the period from Ashadh 12, 2064 to Ashadh 32, 2064. The financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of the organization. Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. '

Our examinations were made in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and
consequently included such tests of the Books and Accounting records and other auditing procedure
as we considered necessary under the circumstance, and we report that:

1.

(]

We have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the organization in
so for as it appear from our examination of those books of account.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure and Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account of the

organization.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the said Statement of Accounts read with the notes give true and fair view:

a.  In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affair of the organization as at Ashadh 32,
2064 (July16, 2007),
b.  In the case of Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure, of the expenditure

incurred upto Ashadh 32,2064 and
c.  Inthe case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us
and from our examination of the books of account of the organization, we have not come across
the cases where the board of directors or any member thereof or any employees of the
organization has acted in contravention of the existing laws, neither have they misappropriated
fund nor caused any loss to the organization so far as it appears from our audit.

Bijaya-Raj Ghimire, FCA
Partner

G & G Associates

Chartered Accountants

Date: 2064-09-02
Place: Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet
As on Ashad 32, 2064 (July 16, 2007)

Particulars

Schedule Amount (NRs.)

Authorised Capital

5,000,000 shares @ Rs 100 each

500,000,000.00

Issued Capital

2,500,000 shares @ Rs. 100 each

250,000,000.00

Paid up Capital

Current Liabilities

1 206,000.00

Total

206,000.00

Application of Fund

Fixed Assets:

Gross Block

Less: Depreciation

Net Block

Current Assets

Cash & Bank Balance

Net Current Assets

Miscellaneous Expenditure

Statement of Preliminary & Pre - operating Expenditure 2

206,000.00

Total

206,000.00

Notes to the Accounts

3

Rama Shakya
Accountant

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Date :2064/09/02
Place : Kathmandu

CHvuwd W@M

As per our report of even date

Khem Prasad Baral
Program Convener

Bijaya Raj Ghimire, FCA
Partner
G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

I =



CitizenLife

Insurance

Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Statement of Preliminary & Pre - Operating Expenditure
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2064 (July 16, 2007)

Particulars Amount (NRs.)

Printing & Stationery 20,000.00
Audit Fee 5,000.00
Conveyance 1,000.00
Remuneration of Mr. Keshab Adhikari 20,000.00
Registration Charge 160,000.00
Total 206,000.00

As per our report of even date

Rama Shakya Pradip Jung Pandey Khem Prasad Baral Bijaya Raj Ghimire, FCA
Accountant Chairman Program Convener Partner
G & G Associates

Chartered Accountants

Date :2064/09/02
Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2064 ( July 16, 2007)

Gtizen Life

Insurance

S.No.

Particulars

Amount (NRs.)

1

Cash From Operating Activity

Preliminary & Pre - opearting Expenses

Depreciation Charged

(206,000.00)

Decrease/ (Increase) in current assets

Increase/ (Decrease) in current Liabilities

206,000.00

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Fixed assets purchase

Affliation Fee

Decrease/(Increase) in Fixed Assets

Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Proceed from Capital

Long term Bank Loan

Loan form Director

Other Borrowed fund

Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Net cash increase/ (Decrease)

Add: Opening Balance of Cash and Bank

Closing Balance of Cash and Bank

Rama Shakya Pradip Jung Pandey Khem Prasad Baral
Accountant Chairman Program Convener

Bijaya Raj Ghimire, FCA
Partner
G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date :2064/09/02
Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts for the year ended
Ashad 32, 2064 (July 16, 2007)

Current Liabilities Schedule - 1
Particulars Amount (NRs.)
Audit Fee Payable 4,550.00
TDS on Audit Fee 450.00
Khem Pd & RK Nirala 201,000.00
Total 206,000.00

Statement of Preliminary & Pre- Operating Expenditure Schedule - 2
Particulars Amount (NRs.)

Opening Balance of Preliminary & Pre- operating Expenditure -

Preliminary & Pre- operating Expenditure for the year 206,000.00
Total 206,000.00

Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2064 (July 16, 2007)

Schedule - 3

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts :

The Financial statement have ben prepared on historical cost basis and are in conformity with generally

accepted accounting principles unless stated otherwise elsewhere.

The significant accounting policies adopted specifically are summarized below:

1 Preliminary & Pre operating expenses incured in relation to establishment of the company shall be
written off over a period of five years after the commencement of operating activities of the
company.

2 No Share Capital has been Paid - up till the date of signing the financial statements.

< Al Fogpod Book
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X Post Box No. 4204,
& G As SOCI ates 176-Dhobidhara Marg
Kathmandu-33, Nepal

Tal. No: 01-4434985

C h a rte red ACCO un ta N tS Eriail: gga@infoclub.com.np

bghimire@enet.com.np

Independent Auditor's Report to
the members of
Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd. as on 31st
- Ashadh 2065 [16th July 2008] together with Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure
and Cash Flow Statement for the period from Shrawan 1, 2064 to Ashadh 31, 2065. The financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of the organization. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Our examinations were made in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and
consequently included such tests of the Books and Accounting records and other auditing procedure
as we considered necessary under the circumstance, and we report that:

1. We have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the organization in
so for as it appear from our examination of those books of account.

(5]

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure and Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account of the
organization.

4. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 10 us.
the said Statement of Accounts read with the notes give true and fair view:

a.  In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affair of the organization as at Ashadh 31.
2065 (Julyl6. 2008),

b.  In the case of Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure, of the expenciture
incurred up to Ashadh 31,2065 and

c.  Inthe case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

5. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given 0 us
and from our examination of the books of account of the organization, we have not come across
the cases where the board of directors or any member thereof or any employees o the
organization has acted in contravention of the existing laws, neither have they misappropriated
fund nor caused any loss to the organization so far as it appears from our audit.

a) Ghimdre, FCA
Partner

G & G Associates

Chartered Accountants

Date: 2065-04-16
Place: Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet
As on Ashad 31, 2065 (July 15, 2008)

Particulars Schedule | Current Year (Rs.) | Previous Year (Rs.)
Share Capital

Authorised Capital 720,000,000.00 | 500,000,000.00
Issued Capital 360,000,000.00 | 250,000,000.00
Paid Up Share Capital 12,600,000.00

Total 12,600,000.00

Application of Fund

Fixed Assets

Gross Block -

Less: Depreciation -

Net Block -

Current Assets:

Deposit 1,000.00

Cash & Bank Balance 3 12,528,664.09

Total 12,529,664.09

Current Liabilities and Provisions

Current Liabilities 2 5,000.00 206,000.00

Total 5,000.00 206,000.00

Net Current Assets 12,524,664.09 (206,000.00)

Miscellaneous Expenditure to the extent not written Off

Statement of Pre-Operating Expenditure 1 75,335.91 206,000.00

Total 12,600,000.00

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Account 4

As per our attached report of even date.

Rama Shakya Pradip Jung Pandey Khem Prasad Baral Bijaya Raj Ghimire, FCA

Accountant Chairman Program Convener Partner

G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date :2065/04/16
Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement
For the Year ended Ashad 31, 2065 (July 15, 2008)

S.No. | Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Previous Year (Rs.)

1 Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Pre - opearting Expenses (326,146.00) (206,000.00)
Add Back-Depreciation -
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets (1,000.00)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities (201,000.00) 206,000.00
Total (528,146.00)

2 Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Increase/Decrease in Investment -

Increase/ Decrease in Fixed Assets -
Total -
3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital 12,600,000.00
Long Term Bank Loan -

Loan From Director -

Interest From Bank Deposit 456,810.09
Other Borrowed Fund -
Dividend Paid -
Total 13,056,810.09
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent 12,528,664.09
5 Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year -
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 12,528,664.09
Rama Shakya Pradip Jung Pandey Khem Prasad Baral Bijaya Raj Ghimire, FCA
Accountant Chairman Program Convener Partner

G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date :2065/04/16
Place : Kathmandu
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Cit

Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2065 (July 15, 2008)

Statement of Pre-Operating Expenditure

izenlife

Insurance

Schedule - 1

Current Year (Rs.)

Prevoius Year (Rs)

Particulars
Opening Balance of Preliminary & Pre- operating Expenditure 206,000.00 -
Pre- operating Expenditure for the Year 326,146.00 206,000.00
532,146.00 206,000.00
Interest Received during the Year (456,810.09) -
Total 75,335.91 206,000.00
Current Liabilities Schedule - 2
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Audit Fee Payable 4,250.00 4,250.00
TDS on Audit Fee 750.00 750.00
Khem Pd. & RK Niraula 201,000.00
Total 5,000.00 206,000.00
Schedule - 3

Cash & Bank Balance

Current Year (Rs.)

Prevoius Year (Rs)

Particulars

Cash Balance 2,148.00 -

Bank Accounts 12,526,516.09 -

Citizen Bank International Ltd (Call Account) 4,648,102.89 -

Citizen Bank International Ltd (Current Account) 100,000.00 -

Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Call Account) 7,778,413.20 -
12,528,664.09 -

Total

CHwuwil W@m&
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Statement of Pre-Operating Expenditure
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2065 (July 15, 2008)

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) Prevoius Year (Rs)
Printing & Stationary 10,037.00 20,000.00
Audit Fee 5,000.00 5,000.00
Conveyance 2,300.00 1,000.00
Registration Fees - 20,000.00
Registration Charges 116,000.00 160,000.00
Advertisement 7,910.00
Entertainment Expenses 9,834.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 6,565.00
Stationery for Proposal Writing 10,000.00
Proposal Writing Charges 100,000.00
Salary Expenses 57,500.00
Post Box Expenses 1,000.00
Total 326,146.00 206,000.00

Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of Accounts

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2065 (July 15, 2008) Schedule - 4

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts :
The financial statements have been prepared on Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and
Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS) under the historical cost basis unless stated otherwise elsewhere.

The significant accounting policies adopted specially are summarized below:

1 Preliminary and preoperative expenses incurred during the year Rs 326,146.00 (PY Rs 2,06,000.00)
in relation to establishment of the company shall be written off over a period of five years after the
commencement of commercial operation of the company. However, during this year, total
preoperative expenses has been deducted by Rs.456,810.09 as the company has received interest
from bank on deposit of share capital money.

2 During the Year Company has called up 5% (Rs 18 M) of its issued share capital Rs. 360 M but at
the end of this financial year Rs 12.6 M has been collected and shown under the head of Share
Capital.

3 As the Company has not started its commercial operation up to end of this Financial Year, no income
statement has been prepared and interest received from bank deposit till end of Ashad 31, 2065
has been netting off against total preoperative expenses.

4 Financial Statements have been presented in Nepalese Rupees.

5 As the Company has not entered into commercial operation during the year and no any profit has
been generated, the Company has not provided for any tax liability.

6 Previous year figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary.
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G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report to
the members of
Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd. as on 31st
Ashadh 2066 [15th July 2009] together with Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure
and Cash Flow Statement for the period from Shrawan 1, 2065 to Ashadh 31, 2066. The financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of the organization. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Our examinations were made in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and
consequently included such tests of the Books and Accounting records and other auditing procedure
as we considered necessary under the circumstance, and we report that:

1.

We have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the organization in
so for as it appear from our examination of those books of account.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure and Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account of the
organization.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the said Statement of Accounts read with the notes give true and fair view:

a.  In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affair of the organization as at Ashadh 31,
2066 (Julyl5, 2009),

b.  In the case of Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure, of the expenditure
incurred up to Ashadh 31,2066 and

¢.  Inthe case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us
and from our examination of the books of account of the organization, we have not come across
the cases where the board of directors or any member thereof or any employees of the
organization has acted in contravention of the existing laws, neither have they misappropriated
fund nor caused any loss to the organization so far as it appears from our audit.

G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2066-08-10
Place; Kathmandu

Post Box No. 4204. 176-Dhobidhara Marg, Kathmandu-33, Nepal, Tel.: 977-1-4442274, 4442282 4434985, Fax: 977-1-4434985

Email: gga@infoclub.com.np, bghimire@enet.com.np
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet

As on Ashad 31, 2066 (July 15, 2009)

Particulars Schedule | Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs.)
Share Capital

Authorised Capital 720,000,000.00 | 500,000,000.00
Issued Capital 360,000,000.00 | 250,000,000.00
Paid Up Share Capital 13,825,000.00 12,600,000.00
Net Pre-Operating Income 310,309.55

Total 14,135,309.55 12,600,000.00
Application of Fund

Fixed Assets

Gross Block 10,000.00 -
Less: Depreciation - -
Net Block 10,000.00 -
Current Assets:

Deposit 1,000.00 1,000.00
Cash & Bank Balance 3 14,232,746.07 12,528,664.09
Total 14,232,746.07 12,528,664.09
Current Liabilities and Provisions

Current Liabilities 2 108,436.52 5,000.00
Total 108,436.52 5,000.00
Net Current Assets 14,124,309.55 12,523,664.09
Miscellaneous Expenditure to the extent not written Off

Statement of Pre-Operating Expenditure 1 - 75,335.91
Total 14,135,309.55 12,600,000.00
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Account 4

As per our attached report of even date.

Khem Prasad Baral
Program Convener

Bijaya Raj Ghimire, FCA
Partner
G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Rama Shakya
Accountant

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Date :2066/08/10
Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Statement of Pre-Operating Income-Expenditure
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2066 (July 15, 2009)

Particulars Schedule | Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs.)
Income

Interest Income 607,941.98 456,810.09
Total Income 607,941.98 456,810.09
Expenses

Opening Pre-Operating Expenses 75,335.91 206,000.00
Printing & Stationary 7,227.00 10,037.00
Audit Fee 5,000.00 5,000.00
Conveyance 13,550.00 2,300.00
Registration Fees

Communication 2,165.00

Registration Charges - 116,000.00
Advertisement - 7,910.00
Entertainment Expenses - 9,834.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,760.00 6,565.00
Stationery for Proposal Writing - 10,000.00
Proposal Writing Charges - 100,000.00
Salary Expenses 64,000.00 57,500.00
AGM expenses 24,158.00

Post Box Expenses - 1,000.00
Total 194,195.91 532,146.00
Net Pre-Operating Income/ (Expenditure) before Tax 413,746.07 (75,335.91)
Provision for Tax 103,436.52

Net Pre-Operating Income Transferred to Reserve 310,309.55 (75,335.91)

As per our attached report of even date.

Rama Shakya Pradip Jung Pandey Khem Prasad Baral Bijaya Raj Ghimire, FCA
Accountant Chairman Program Convener Partner
G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date :2066/08/10
Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended Ashad 31, 2066 (July 15, 2009)

S.No. | Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)

1 Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Interest Income 607,941.98 456,810.09
Administrative Expenses (118,860.00) (326,146.00)
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets - (1,000.00)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities - (201,000.00)
Total 489,081.98 (71,335.91)

2 Cash Flow from Investing Activities :

(Increase)/Decrease in Investment - -

(Increase)/ Decrease in Fixed Assets (10,000.00) -

Total (10,000.00) -
3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities :

Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital 1,225,000.00 12,600,000.00

Long Term Bank Loan - -

Loan From Director - -

Other Borrowed Fund - -

Dividend Paid - -
Total 1,225,000.00 12,600,000.00
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,704,081.98 12,528,664.09
5 Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,528,664.09 -
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 14,232,746.07 12,528,664.09
Rama Shakya Pradip Jung Pandey Khem Prasad Baral Bijaya Raj Ghimire, FCA
Accountant Chairman Program Convener Partner

G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date :2066/08/10
Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2066 (July 15, 2009)

Statement of Pre-Operating Expenditure

ifi

zenlife

Insurance

Schedule - 1

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Opening Balance of Preliminary & Pre- operating Expenditure 75,335.91 206,000.00
Pre- operating Expenditure for the Year 118,860.00 326,146.00
194,195.91 532,146.00
Interest Received during the Year (607,941.98) (456,810.09)
Total (413,746.07) 75,335.91
Current Liabilities Schedule - 2
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Audit Fee Payable 4,250.00 4,250.00
TDS on Audit Fee 750.00 750.00
Provision for Taxation 103,436.52
Total 108,436.52 5,000.00
Cash & Bank Balance Schedule - 3
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Cash Balance 4,446.00 2,148.00
Bank Accounts 14,228,300.07 12,526,516.09
Citizen Bank International Ltd (Call Account) 863,453.26 4,648,102.89
Citizen Bank International Ltd (Current Account) 17,842.00 100,000.00
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Fixed Account) 8,246,754.20
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Call Account) 100,250.61 7,778,413.20
Global Bank Ltd. 5,000,000.00

Total

14,232,746.07

12,528,664.09

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Rama Shakya
Accountant

Date :2066/08/10
Place : Kathmandu

CHwuwil W@mﬁ

Khem Prasad Baral
Program Convener

Bijaya Raj Ghimire, FCA

Partner

G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Statement of Pre-Operating Expenditure
For the Year ended Ashad 31, 2066 (July 15, 2009)

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Printing & Stationary 7,227.00 10,037.00
Audit Fee 5,000.00 5,000.00
Conveyance 13,550.00 2,300.00
Registration Fees - -
Communication 2,165.00
Registration Charges - 116,000.00
Advertisement - 7,910.00
Entertainment Expenses - 9,834.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,760.00 6,565.00
Stationery for Proposal Writing - 10,000.00
Proposal Writing Charges - 100,000.00
Salary Expenses 64,000.00 57,500.00
AGM expenses 24,158.00
Post Box Expenses 1,000.00
Total 118,860.00 326,146.00
Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.
Schedules forming part of Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2066 (July 15, 2009)
Schedule - 4

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts:
The financial statements have been prepared on Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and Nepal
Accounting Standards (NAS) under the historical cost basis unless stated otherwise elsewhere.

The significant accounting policies adopted specially are summarized below:

1

Preliminary and preoperative expenses incurred during the year Rs 118,860.00 (PY Rs 326,146.00) shall
be written off over a period of five years after the commencement of commercial operation of the
company. However, during this year, total pre operative expenses has been deducted by Rs.607,942.00
as the company has received interest from bank on deposit of share capital money. Due to this reason
the Company has net deferred income of Rs 310309.55 as pre operating income.

During the year Company has called up 1,225,000.00 as share capital and consequently Share Capital
As the Company has not started its commercial operation up to end of this Financial Year, no income

statement has been prepared and interest received from bank deposit till end of Ashad 31, 2066 has

Income tax liability has been provided @ 25 % on net pre-operating income after deducting pre-operating

2
of the company has reached Rs 13,825,000.00
3
been netting off against total preoperative expenses.
4 Financial Statements have been presented in Nepalese Rupees.
5
expenses till date.
6

£ J—

Previous year figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary.
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A wog s gaifauea
& G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report to
the members of
Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd. as on 32
Ashadh 2067 [16th July 2010] together with Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure
and Cash Flow Statement for the period from Shrawan 1, 2066 to Ashadh 32, 2067. The financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of the organization. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Our examinations were made in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and
consequently included such tests of the Books and Accouuting records and other auditing procedure
as we considered necessary under the circumstance, and we report that:

L.

1

We have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit -

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the organization in
so for as it appear from our examination of those books of account.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure and Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account of the
organization.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the said Statement of Accounts read with the notes give true and fair view:

a.  In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affair of the organization as at Ashadh 32,
2067 (July16, 2010),

b.  In the case of Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure, of the expenditure
incurred up to Ashadh 32, 2067 and

¢.  Inthe case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us
and from our examination of the books of account of the organization, we have not come across
the cases where the board of directors or any member thereof or any employees of the
organization has acted in contravention of the existing laws, neither have they misappropriated
fund nor caused any loss to the organization so far as it appears from our audit.

Chartered Accountants

Date: 2067-08-14
Place: Kathmandu

Post Box No. 4204, 176-Dhobidhara Marg, Kathmandu-33, Nepal, Tel.: 977-1-4442274, 4442282, 4434985, Fax: 977-1-4434985

Email: gga@infoclub.com.np, bghimire@enet.com.np
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet
As on Ashad 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010)

Particulars Schedule | Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Share Capital and Reserve

Equity :

Share Capital 1 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserves & Surplus: 2 1,419,049.54 310,309.55
Total 15,244,049.54 14,135,309.55
Application of Fund

Fixed Assets 3 5,625.00 10,000.00
Current Assets:

Cash in Hand 3,011.00 4,446.00
Cash at Bank 4 15,355,682.16 14,228,300.07
Post Office Deposit 1,000.00 1,000.00
Advance Tax 5 192,055.18 -
Total (B) 15,551,748.34 14,233,746.07
Current Liabilities and Provisions Liabilities :

Payable to Staffs 6 1,835.00 -
TDS Payable 7 576.00 -
Audit Fee Payable 8 14,800.00 5,000.00
Provision for Taxation 296,112.80 103,436.52
Total (C) 313,323.80 108,436.52
Net Current Assets 15,238,424.54 14,125,309.55
Total 15,244,049.54 14,135,309.55

Schedule 1-10 form integral part of financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date.

Rama Shakya Pradip Jung Pandey Khem Prasad Baral FCA, Bijaya Raj Ghimire
Accountant Chairman Program Convener Partner
G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date :2067/08/14
Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Statement of Pre-Operating Income-Expenditure
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010)

Particulars Schedule | Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Income

Interest Income 8 1,274,201.18 607,941.38
Total Income 1,274,201.18 607,941.38
Expenses

Opening Pre-Operating Expenses 75,335.91
Printing & Stationery 1,870.00 7,227.00
Audit Fee 15,000.00 5,000.00
Conveyance 1,900.00 13,550.00
Entertaintemnt 750.00 2,760.00
Communication Fees 2,755.00 2,165.00
Depreciation 1,875.00

Salary & Dashain Allowance 64,000.00 64,000.00
Deposit Written Off 1,000.00

Bank Charges 600.00

AGM Expenses 24,158.00
Total 89,750.00 194,195.91
Profit Before Tax 1,184,451.18 413,745.47
Provision for Tax 296,112.80 103,436.37
Net Pre-Operating Income After Tax 888,338.38 310,309.10

Rama Shakya
Accountant

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Date :2067/08/14
Place : Kathmandu

£ J—

As per our attached report of even date.

Khem Prasad Baral
Program Convener

FCA, Bijaya Raj Ghimire

Partner

G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants

CHwuwid W@m&
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010)

tizenlife

Insurance

S.No. | Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
1 Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Cash receipts from Operation
Cash Paid to Employees and Suppliers (75,839.00) (118,860.00)
Tax Payment (16,530.00) -
Total (92,369.00) (118,860.00)
2 Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Interest Income Received 1,218,316.09 607,941.98
Increase/Decrease in Investment - -
Increase/ Decrease in Fixed Assets - (10,000.00)
Total 1,218,316.09 597,941.98
3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital - 1,225,000.00
Dividend Paid - -
Total - 1,225,000.00
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,125,947.09 1,704,081.98
5 Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,232,746.07 12,528,664.09
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 15,358,693.16 14,232,746.07

Rama Shakya
Accountant

Date

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

:2067/08/14

Place : Kathmandu

CHwuwid W@m&

Khem Prasad Baral
Program Convener

FCA, Bijaya Raj Ghimire

Partner

G & G Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010)

Share Capital

izenlife

Insurance

Schedule - 1

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs.)
Authorised Share Cpital 720,000,000.00 | 720,000,000.00
Issued Share Capital 360,000,000.00 | 360,000,000.00
Paid Up Share Capital 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00

Total 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
General Reserve & Surplus Schedule - 2
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Net Pre-Operating Profit brought forward from Last Year 310,309.55 (75,335.46)
Adjustments : - -
Depreciation not booked in Previous Year adjusted (2,500.00) -
Interest Income of Previous Year (TDS Receivable) 86,906.52 -
TDS on Audit Fee misstated as Current Liability in Previous Year 750.00 -
Net Interest received but not booked in Prevoius Year 135,245.09 -
Profit Transferred from P&L Account 888,338.38 385,645.01
Total Profit transferred to Balance Sheet 1,419,049.54 310,309.55
Fixed Assets - Office Equipment Schedule - 3

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Gross Block 10,000.00 10,000.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (4,375.00) -
Less: Assets Written Off - -
Total 5,625.00 10,000.00
Bank Balance Schedule - 4

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Citizen Bank International Ltd (Call Account) 810,037.10 863,453.26
Citizen Bank International Ltd (Current Account) 7,562.00 17,842.00
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Fixed Account) 8,891,166.00 8,246,754.20
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Call Account) 105,478.72 100,250.61

Global Bank Ltd. 5,541,438.34 5,000,000.00
Total 15,355,682.16 14,228,300.07

CHwuwil W@m&
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Advance Tax

Schedule - 5

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Citizen Bank International Ltd. 5,591.25 -
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Fixed) 113,719.74 -
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Call) 922.61 -
Global Bank Ltd. 70,896.58 -
Total 191,130.18 -
Excess TDS on Audit Fee deposited 925.00 -
Total 192,055.18 -

Payable to Staffs

Schedule -6

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Staff Payable 1,835.00 -
Total 1,835.00 -
TDS Payable Schedule - 7
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
TDS Payable on Audit Fee 576.00 -
TDS Payable on Salary - -
Total 576.00 -
Audit Fee Payable Schedule - 8
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Audit Fee Payable 14,800.00 5,000.00
Audit Fee - G & G Associates - -
Total 14,800.00 5,000.00
Interest Income Schedule -9

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Citizen Bank International Ltd. (Call A/C) 37,275.11 -
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Fixed Deposit A/C) 758,131.52 -
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Call A/C) 6,150.72 -
Global Bank Ltd. 472,643.83 -
Total 1,274,201.18 607,941.38
< Ot Fgpod Book
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2067 (July 16, 2010)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts :

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) and Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS) unless stated otherwise elsewhere. The significant accounting
policies adopted specially are summarized below:

1 Capitalization and depreciation of Fixed Asset :

1.1 Fixed assets has been disclosed at historical cost.

1.2 Depreciation has been charged on fixed assets according to Income Tax Act 2058.
Depreciation of previous year amounting Rs.2,500 has been adjusted against the retained
earnings in the current year as no depreciation had been charged thereof.

2 Income Tax Provision :
Tax provision @25% of net re-operating profit of the current year has been maintained.
3 Income Recognition :

As the company has not started its commercial operation up to the end of this financial year, no

income statement has been prepared. Interest received from bank deposit till the end of Ashadh,

2067 is the whole income of the organization and it has been recognized on accrual basis.

Consequently interest income of previous year, amounting Rs 222,151.61 (TDS Receivable Rs

86,906.52 and net interest received =Rs 135,245.09) has been added to the opening net pre-operating

profit in the current year.

Financial Statements have been presented in Nepalese Rupees.

5 Previous year's figures, formats, schedules and account heads have been regrouped and rearranged
wherever necessary.
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Sewa Pathak & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Manbhawan, Lalitpur, Nepal.
Tel No.: 977-1-2074077, Fax: 977-1-5546974, Email: info@spassociates.com.np

The Shareholders of Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd.
Independent Auditor’s Report

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd as on 32 Ashadh 2068
(Correspondmg to 16 July 2011) together with Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure and Cash
Flow Statement for the period from 01 Shrawan, 2067 to 32 Ashadh, 2068. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of the organization. Our responsibility is to express on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As per the requirement of the Company Act, 2063 we also report that:

a) we have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b)  in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the organization in so far as it
appears from our examination of those books of account.

c) the Balance Sheet Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure and Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account of the organization.

d) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the said
Statement of Accounts read with the notes give true and fair view:

a. In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affair of the organization as at Ashadh 32, 2068 (16 July
2011)

b. In the case of Statement of Pre-operating Income/ Expenditure, of the income earned and expenditure
incurred up to Ashadh 32, 2068 ( 16 July 2011) and

c. In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

e) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us and from our
examination of the books of account of the organization, we have not come across the cases where the board
of directors or any member thereof or any employees of the organization has acted in contravention of the
existing laws, neither have they misappropriated fund nor caused any loss in to the organization so far as it
appears from our audit.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of 32 Ashad 2068 (Corresponding to 16 July 2011), the results of operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and
comply with the provisions of the Company Act.

=

Sewa Pathak
Principal

For and on behalf of Sewa PathakiRd Asv5otm
Chartered Accountants Lalitpur, Nepal.
03 December 2011 (16 Bhadra 2068), Kathmandu




G

Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet

As on Ashad 31, 2068 (July 15, 2011)

tizenlife

Insurance

Particulars Schedule Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Share Capital and Reserve

Equity :

Share Capital 1 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserves & Surplus : 2 2,646,198.00 1,419,050.00
Total 16,471,198.00 15,244,050.00
Application of Fund

Fixed Assets 3 4,219.00 5,625.00
Current Assets:

Cash in Hand 447.00 3,011.00
Cash at Bank 4 16,664,027.00 15,355,682.00
Post Office Deposit 1,000.00 1,000.00
Advance Tax 5 258,977.00 192,056.00

Total (B) 16,924,451.00 15,551,749.00
Current Liabilities and ProvisionsLiabilities :

Payable to Staffs 18,198.00 1,835.00
TDS Payable 940.00 576.00
Audit Fee Payable 28,430.00 14,800.00
Provision for Taxation 409,904.00 296,113.00
Total ( C) 457,472.00 313,324.00
Net Current Assets 16,466,979.00 15,238,425.00
Total 16,471,198.00 15,244,050.00

Schedule 1-10 form integral part of financial statements.

Anju Maharjan
Accountant

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Date :2068/05/16
Place : Kathmandu

CHwuwil W@m&

Khem Prasad Baral

Program Convener

As per our attached report of even date.

Sewa Pathak, FCA

Principal

For Sewa Pathak and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Statement of Pre-Operating Income-Expenditure
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

Particulars Schedule Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Income

Interest Income 8 1,731,849.00 1,274,201.00
Total Income 1,731,849.00 1,274,201.00
Expenses

Printing & Stationery 3,927.00 1,870.00
Audit Fee 20,000.00 15,000.00
Conveyance 500.00 1,900.00
Fooding - 750.00
Communication Fees 2,000.00 2,755.00
Depreciation 1,406.00 1,875.00
Salary & Dashain Allowance 64,000.00 64,000.00
Deposit Written Off - 1,000.00
Bank Charges 400.00 600.00
Total 92,233.00 89,750.00
Profit Before Tax 1,639,616.00 1,184,451.00
Provision for Tax 409,904.00 296,113.00
Net Pre-Operating Income After Tax 1,229,712.00 888,338.00

As per our attached report of even date.

Khem Prasad Baral
Program Convener

Anju Maharjan
Accountant

Sewa Pathak, FCA
Principal
For Sewa Pathak and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Date :2068/05/16
Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

S.No. | Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
1 Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Cash receipts from Operation
Cash Paid to Employees and Suppliers (60,470.00) (75,839.00)
Tax Payment (104,058.00) (16,530.00)
Total (164,528.00) (92,369.00)
2 Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Interest Income Received 1,472,873.00 1,218,316.00
Increase/Decrease in Investment - -
Increase/ Decrease in Fixed Assets - -
Total 1,472,873.00 1,218,316.00
3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital - -
Dividend Paid - -
Total - -
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,308,345.00 1,125,947.00
5 Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 15,358,693.00 14,232,746.00
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 16,667,038.00 15,358,693.00

Sewa Pathak, FCA
Principal
For Sewa Pathak and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Khem Prasad Baral
Program Convener

Anju Maharjan
Accountant

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Date :2068/05/16
Place : Kathmandu

Al Fgpodt Book I < 3
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

izenlife

Insurance

Share Capital Schedule - 1
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Authorised Share Cpital 720,000,000.00 | 720,000,000.00
Issued Share Capital 360,000,000.00 | 360,000,000.00
Paid Up Share Capital 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Total 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00

General Reserve & Surplus Schedule - 2

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Opening Balance 1,419,050.00 310,310.00
Adjustments : -
Depreciation not booked in Previous Year adjusted (2,500.00)
Interest Income of Previous Year (TDS Receivable) 86,907.00
TDS on Audit Fee misstated as Current Liability in Previous Year 750.00
Net Interest received but not booked in Prevoius Year 135,245.00
TDS Paid on House Rent (2,500.00) -
Additional TDS Paid on Salary (64.00) -
Profit Transferred from P&L Account 1,229,712.00 888,338.00
Total Profit transferred to Balance Sheet 2,646,198.00 1,419,050.00
Fixed Assets - Office EQquipment Schedule - 3
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Gross Block 10,000.00 10,000.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (5,781.00) (4,375.00)
Less: Assets Written Off - -
Total 4,219.00 5,625.00
Bank Balance Schedule - 4
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Citizen Bank Ltd (Current Account) 63,830.00 7,562.00
Citizen Bank Ltd (Call Account) 624,216.00 810,037.00
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. - 8,891,166.00
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. 113,081.00 105,479.00
Global IME Bank Ltd. (Fixed Deposit) 5,000,000.00 5,541,438.00
Global IME Bank Ltd. (Current Account) 499,393.00 -
Mega Bank Ltd. (Fixed Deposit) 10,000,000.00 -
Mega Bank Ltd. (Current Account) 363,507.00 -
Total 16,664,027.00 15,355,682.00
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Advance Tax Schedule - 5
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Citizen Bank Ltd. 6,172.00 5,591.00
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. 101,897.00 113,720.00
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. 400.00 923.00
Global IME Bank Ltd. 88,125.00 70,897.00
Mega Bank Ltd. 62,384.00 -
Total 258,978.00 191,131.00
Excess TDS on Audit Fee deposited 925.00
Total 258,978.00 192,056.00

Schedule - 6

Payable to Staffs

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Staff Payable 18,198.00 1,835.00
Total 18,198.00 1,835.00
TDS Payable Schedule - 7
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
TDS Payable on Audit Fee 300.00 576.00
TDS Payable on Salary 640.00 -
Total 940.00 576.00
Schedule - 8

Audit Fee Payable

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Audit Fee Payable 19,700.00 14,800.00
Audit Fee - G & G Associates 8,730.00 -
Total 28,430.00 14,800.00
Interest Income Schedule -9

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Citizen Bank International Ltd. (Call A/C) 41,146.00 37,275.00
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Fixed Deposit A/C) 679,311.00 758,132.00
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. (Corporate A/C) 8,002.00 6,151.00
Global IME Bank Ltd. 587,500.00 472,644.00
Mega Bank (Fixed Deposit A/C) 415,890.00 -
Total 1,731,849.00 1,274,202.00
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

Schedule -9 and 10

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts :

1

10

Organisation :

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited is registered under Company Act 2063 to carry out life
insurance activities in Nepal. The Company is yet to obtain license from Insurance Board of Nepal
to conduct life insurance transactions .It has yet to start its commercial operation.

Basis of Preparation :

The financial Statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting, which presents financial
position, statement of operating income /expenditure account and cash flows in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and Nepal Accounting Standards. As the company is yet
commence its operations, Profit and loss account has not been prepared and instead a Statement
of Pre- Operating Income/Expenditure is prepared.

Cash & Cash Equivalent :
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and cash held in local financial institutions.

Income Taxes :
Income tax is computed at the rate of 25% of the operating profit.

Income:

Since the Company has not come into commercial operation till date, the sole income is from
interest income from deposits in commercial banks. Interest income is accounted for on an accrual
basis of accounting. All interests accrued up to Asadh 32 2068 have been received on that date.

Expenditure :
As the Company has not come into commercial operation, basic salary expenses and petty expenses
are incurred to date. Expenditure are booked as per accrual basis of accounting.

Fixed Assets & Depreciation :
Only some office equipment has been purchased till date. Depreciation is computed as per Income
tax Act 2058.

Re-Grouping :
Figures are heading of the previous year are re-grouped to provide a more accuracy, transparency
and clarity. Figures are rounded off to nearest zero.

Use of Estimates :
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
and Nepal Accounting Standards require management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual figures could differ from
reported amounts.

Rounding Off :
Figures of round off to the nearest decimal.
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Sewa Pathak & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Manbhawan, Lalitpur, Nepal.
Tel No.: 977-1-2074077, Fax: 977-1-5546974, Email: info@spassociates.com.np

The Shareholders of Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd.
Independent Auditor’s Report

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd as on 31 Ashadh 2069
(Corresponding to 15 July 2012) together with Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure and Cash
Flow Statement for the period from 01 Shrawan, 2068 to 31 Ashadh, 2069. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of the organization. Our responsibility is to express on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As per the requirement of the Company Act, 2063 we also report that:

a) we have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the organization in so far as it
appears from our examination of those books of account.

c) the Balance Sheet Statement of Preliminary & Pre-operating Expenditure and Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account of the organization.

d) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the said
Statement of Accounts read with the notes give true and fair view:

a. In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affair of the organization as at Ashadh 31, 2069 (15 July
2012)

b. In the case of Statement of Pre-operating Income/ Expenditure, of the income earned and expenditure
incurred up to Ashadh 31, 2069 ( 15 July 2012) and

¢. In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

e) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us and from our
examination of the books of account of the organization, we have not come across the cases where the board
of directors or any member thereof or any employees of the organization has acted in contravention of the
existing laws, neither have they misappropriated fund nor caused any loss in to the organization so far as it
appears from our audit.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of 31 Ashad 2069 (Corresponding to 15 July 2012), the results of operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and
comply with the provisions of the Company Act.

/

Sewa Pathak, FCA
Principal

For and on behalf of Sewa Pa
Chartered Accountants

03 June 2012 (20 Jestha 2070
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet
As on Ashad 31, 2069 (July 15, 2012)

tizenlife

Insurance

Particulars Schedule | Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Share Capital and Reserve

Equity :

Share Capital 1 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserves & Surplus : 2 3,270,047.52 2,646,198.00
Up to Previous Year 2,646,198.00 1,419,050.00
For the Year 623,849.52 1,227,148.00
Total 17,095,047.52 16,471,198.00
Application of Funds

Fixed Assets 3 - 4,219.00
Current Assets:

Cash in Hand 806.57 447.00
Cash at Bank 4 17,194,963.22 16,664,027.00
Post Office Deposit 1,000.00 1,000.00
Advance Tax 5 166,666.90 258,977.00
Total (B) 17,363,436.69 16,924,451.00
Current Liabilities and ProvisionsLiabilities :

Payable to Staffs - 18,198.00
TDS Payable 30,603.00 940.00
Payable -Others 8,730.00 8,730.00
Audit Fee Payable 19,700.00 19,700.00
Provision for Taxation 209,356.17 409,904.00
Total ( C) 268,389.17 457,472.00
Net Current Assets 17,095,047.52 16,466,979.00
Total 17,095,047.52 16,471,198.00

Schedule 1-10 form on integral part of financial statements.

Anju Maharjan
Accountant

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Date :2070/02/20
Place : Kathmandu

CHwuwil W@m&

Khem Prasad Baral

Program Convener

As per our attached report of even date.

Sewa Pathak, FCA

Principal

For Sewa Pathak and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Statement of Pre-Operating Income-Expenditure
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2069 (July 15, 2012)

Particulars Schedule | Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Income

Interest Income 8 1,111,112.69 1,731,849.00
Total Income 1,111,112.69 1,731,849.00
Expenses

Printing & Stationery - 3,927.00
Audit Fee 20,000.00 20,000.00
Audit Expenses - -
Conveyance - 500.00
Refreshment 23,388.00 -
Communication Fees - 2,000.00
Salary & Dashain Allowance 30,300.00 64,000.00
Bank Charges - 400.00
Legal & Consultancy Expenses 200,000.00 -
Assets written Off 4,219.00 -
Depreciation - 1,406.00
Total 277,907.00 92,233.00
Profit Before Tax 833,205.69 1,639,616.00
Provision for Tax 209,356.17 409,904.00
Net Pre-Operating Income After Tax 623,849.52 1,229,712.00

As per our attached report of even date.

Anju Maharjan Pradip Jung Pandey Khem Prasad Baral Sewa Pathak, FCA
Accountant Chairman Program Convener Principal
For Sewa Pathak and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date :2070/02/20
Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2069 (July 15, 2012)

S.No. | Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
1 Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Cash receipts from Operation
Expenditure for the Year (487,263.17) (502,137.00)
Add Back-Depreciation - 1,406.00
Add Back-Assets Written Off 4,219.00 -
Prior Year Adjustments in General Reserve - (2,564.00)
(Increase)/decrease in Current Assets 92,310.10 (66,921.00)
Increase/(decrease) in Current Liabilities (189,082.83) 144,148.00
Total (579,816.90) (426,068.00)
2 Cash flow from Investing Activities
Interest Income Received 1,111,112.69 1,731,849.00
Increase/Decrease in Investment - -
Increase/ Decrease in Fixed Assets - -
Total 1,111,112.69 1,731,849.00
3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital - -
Dividend Paid - -
Total - -
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent 531,295.79 1,305,781.00
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 16,664,474.00 15,358,693.00
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 17,195,769.79 16,664,474.00

Anju Maharjan Pradip Jung Pandey Khem Prasad Baral Sewa Pathak, FCA

Accountant Chairman Program Convener Principal
For Sewa Pathak and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date :2070/02/20

Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2069 (July 15, 2012)

it

izenlife

Insurance

Share Capital Schedule - 1
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Authorised Share Cpital 720,000,000.00 | 720,000,000.00
Issued Share Capital 360,000,000.00 | 360,000,000.00
Paid Up Share Capital 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Total 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00

General Reserve & Surplus Schedule - 2
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Opening Balance 2,646,198.00 1,419,050.00
Adjustments: -
TDS Paid on House Rent - (2,500.00)
Additional TDS Paid on Salary - (64.00)
Profit Transferred from P&L Account 623,849.52 1,229,712.00
Total Profit transferred to Balance Sheet 3,270,047.52 2,646,198.00

Fixed Assets Schedule - 3

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Gross Block 10,000.00 10,000.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (5,781.00) (5,781.00)
Less: Assets Written Off (4,219.00) -
Total - 4,219.00

Bank Balance Schedule - 4
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Citizen Bank Ltd (Current Account) 15,532.00 63,830.00
Citizen Bank Ltd (Call Account) 477,239.83 624,216.00
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. 121,531.32 113,081.00
Global IME Bank Ltd. (Fixed Deposit) 5,766,660.10 5,000,000.00
Global IME Bank Ltd. (Current Account) 499,393.00
Mega Bank Ltd. (Fixed Deposit) 10,000,000.00
10,813,999.97 363,507.00

Mega Bank Ltd. (Current Account)

Total

17,194,963.22

16,664,027.00
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Advance Tax Schedule - 5
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Global IME Bank Ltd. 50,674.35 88,125.00
Mega Bank Ltd. 110,116.43 62,384.00
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. 1,536.48 102,297.00
Citizen Bank Ltd. 4,339.64 6,172.00
Total 166,666.90 258,978.00

TDS Payable Schedule - 6
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
TDS Payable on Audit Fee 300.00 300.00
TDS Payable on Legal & Consultancy Fee 30,000.00 -
TDS Payable on Salary 303.00 640.00
Total 30,603.00 940.00

Schedule - 7

Payable - Others

Prevoius Year (Rs)

Particulars Current Year (Rs.)

G & G Associates 8,730.00 8,730.00

Total 8,730.00 8,730.00
Schedule - 8

Interest Income

Prevoius Year (Rs)

Particulars Current Year (Rs.)

Global IME Bank Ltd. 337,828.99 587,500.00
Mega Bank 734,109.57 415,890.00
Siddhartha Finance 10,243.18 687,313.00
Citizen Bank Call A/c 28,930.95 41,146.00
Total 1,111,112.69 1,731,849.00
< Al Fgpad Book
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Summary of Significat Accounting Polices and Notes
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2069 (July 15, 2012)

Schedule -9 and 10

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts:

1

Organisation :

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited is registered under Company Act 2063 to carry out life
insurance activities in Nepal. The Company is yet to obtain license from Insurance Board of Nepal
to conduct life insurance transactions .Ilt has yet to start its commercial operation.

Basis of Preparation :

The Financial Statement are prepared on accrual basis of accounting, which presents financial
position, statement of pre-operating income /expenditure account and cash flows in accordance
with generally accepted principles and Nepal Accounting Standards. As the company is yet commence
its commercial operation, a Statement of Pre- Operating Income-Expenditure is prepared instead
of profit and loss account.

Cash & Cash Equivalent :
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash held in financial institutions.

Income Taxes :
Income tax is computed at 25% of operating profit.

Revunue Recognition :

Since the Company has not come into commercial operation till date, the sole income is from the
interest income from deposits in commercial banks and financial institutions. Interest income is
accounted for on accrual basis of accounting. All interests accrued up to Ashad 31 2069 have been
received.

Pre-Operation Expenses :

As the Company has not come into commercial operation, basic salary expenses and petty expenses
are incurred till date. Expenditures are accounted for on accrual basis of accounting. During the
year, an expenses amounting to Rs 200,000.00 (In words: Rupees Two Lakhs only) has been incurred
on behalf of legal and consultancy services obtained from Mr. Ram Krishna Nirala.

Fixed Assets & Depreciation :
Only some equipment has been purchased till date. Depreciation is accounted for as per Income
tax Act. During the year, the remaining balance of Assets sum of Rs 4,219 has been written off.

Re-Grouping :
Figures are heading of previous year re-grouped as necessary to provide a more accuracy, transparency
and clarity.
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Sewa Pathak & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Manbhawan, Lalitpur, Nepal.
Tel No.: 977-1-2074077, Fax: 977-1-5546974, Email: info@spassociates.com.np
AUDITORS REPORT

To the Board of Directors
CitiZen Life Insurance Co. Ltd
Kathmandu, Nepal

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of Citizen Life Insurance Co Ltd as of
15 July 2013 (2070 Ashad 31) and the related cash flows and statement of changes in equity of the
period then ended.. The preparations of financial statements are the responsibility of the management
of Citizen Life Insurance Co Lt.d Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSA). Those standards require us
to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles and significant estimates made by the management as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above fairly present , in all material
respects, the financial position of Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd of 15 July 2013 (2070 Ashad 31). The
company has not come into operation till date. The only income is the interest income earned of
deposits of share capital called. The company does not own any assets.

31 December 2013

Q AL
Sewa Pathak
Chartered Accountant

for Sewa Pathak & ASsoCiatggi .,

Nepal.
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet
As on Ashad 31, 2070 (July 15, 2013)

tizenlife

Insurance

Particulars Schedule | Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Share Capital and Reserve

Equity :

Share Capital 1 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserves & Surplus : 2 3,511,613.46 3,270,047.52
Up to Previous Year 3,270,047.52 2,646,198.00
For the Year 241,565.94 623,849.52
Total 17,336,613.46 17,095,047.52
Application of Fund

Fixed Assets 3 - -
Current Assets :

Cash in Hand 806.57 806.57
Cash at Bank 4 17,498,262.96 17,194,963.22
Post Office Deposit 1,000.00 1,000.00
Advance Tax 5 220,455.08 166,666.90
Total (B) 17,720,524.61 17,363,436.69
Current Liabilities and ProvisionsLiabilities :

Payable to Staffs - -
TDS Payable 30,903.00 30,603.00
Payable -Others 8,730.00 8,730.00
Audit Fee Payable 54,400.00 19,700.00
Provision for Taxation 289,878.15 209,356.17
Total (C) 383,911.15 268,389.17
Net Current Assets 17,336,613.46 17,095,047.52
Total 17,336,613.46 17,095,047.52

Schedule 1-10 form integral part of financial statements.

Anju Maharjan
Accountant

Date :31/12/2013
Place : Thapthali, Kathmandu

CHwuwil W@m&

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Khem Prasad Baral
Program Convener

As per our attached report of even date.

Sewa Pathak, FCA

Principal

For Sewa Pathak and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Statement of Pre-Operating Income-Expenditure

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2070 (July 15, 2013)

Particulars Schedule | Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Income

Interest Income 8 358,587.92 1,111,112.69
Total Income 358,587.92 1,111,112.69
Expenses

Printing & Stationery - -
Audit Fee 20,000.00 20,000.00
Audit Expenses 15,000.00 -
Conveyance - -
Refreshment - 23,388.00
Bank Charges 1,500.00 -
Salary & Dashain Allowance - 30,300.00
Bank Charges - -
Legal & Consultancy Expenses - 200,000.00
Assets written Off - 4,219.00
Depreciation - -
Total 36,500.00 277,907.00
Profit Before Tax 322,087.92 833,205.69
Provision for Tax 80,521.98 209,356.17
Net Pre-Operating Income After Tax 241,565.94 623,849.52

Khem Prasad Baral Sewa Pathak, FCA
Program Convener Principal
For Sewa Pathak and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Anju Maharjan
Accountant

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Date :31/12/2013
Place : Thapthali, Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2070 (July 15, 2013)

S.No. | Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)

1 Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Cash receipts from Operation

Expenditure for the Year (117,021.98) (487,263.17)
Add Back-Depreciation - -
Add Back-Assets Written Off - 4,219.00
Prior Year Adjustments in General Reserve - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Current Assets (53,788.18) 92,310.10
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 115,521.98 (189,082.83)
Total (55,288.18) (579,816.90)
2 Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Interest Income Received 358,587.92 1,111,112.69

Increase / Decrease in Investment - -

Increase / Decrease in Fixed Assets - -
Total 358,587.92 1,111,112.69

3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities :

Increase / (Decrease) in Share Capital - -

Dividend Paid - -
Total - -
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent 303,299.74 531,295.79
5 Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 17,195,769.79 16,664,474.00
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 17,499,069.53 17,195,769.79
Anju Maharjan Pradip Jung Pandey Khem Prasad Baral Sewa Pathak, FCA
Accountant Chairman Program Convener Principal

For Sewa Pathak and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date :31/12/2013
Place : Thapthali, Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2070 (July 15, 2013)

izenlife

Insurance

Share Capital Schedule - 1
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Authorised Share Capital 720,000,000.00 | 720,000,000.00
Issued Share Capital 360,000,000.00 | 360,000,000.00
Paid Up Share Capital 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Total 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00

General Reserve & Surplus Schedule - 2

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Opening Balance 3,270,047.52 2,646,198.00
Adjustments: -
TDS Paid on House Rent - -
Additional TDS Paid on Salary - -
Profit Transferred from P&L Account 241,565.94 623,849.52
Total Profit transferred to Balance Sheet 3,511,613.46 3,270,047.52
Fixed Assets Schedule - 3
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Gross Block - 10,000.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation - (5,781.00)
Less: Assets Written Off - (4,219.00)
Total - -
Bank Balance Schedule - 4

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Citizen Bank Ltd (Current Account) 17,498,262.96 15,532.00
Citizen Bank Ltd (Call Account) - 477,239.83
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. - 121,531.32
Global IME Bank Ltd. (Fixed Deposit) - 5,766,660.10
Mega Bank Ltd. (Current Account) - 10,813,999.97

Total

17,498,262.96

17,194,963.22
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Advance Tax Schedule - 5
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Global IME Bank Ltd. - 50,674.35
Mega Bank Ltd. - 110,116.43
Siddhartha Finance Ltd. 916.66 1,536.48
Citizen Bank Ltd. 52,871.52 4,339.64
Total 53,788.18 166,666.90

TDS Payable Schedule - 6
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
TDS Payable on Audit Fee 600.00 300.00
TDS Payable on Legal & Consultancy Fee 30,000.00 30,000.00
TDS Payable on Salary 303.00 303.00
Total 30,903.00 30,603.00

Payable - Others Schedule - 7

Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
G & G Associates 8,730.00 8,730.00
Total 8,730.00 8,730.00
Interest Income Schedule - 8
Particulars Current Year (Rs.) | Prevoius Year (Rs)
Global IME Bank Ltd. - 337,828.99
Mega Bank - 734,109.57
Siddhartha Finance 6,111.09 10,243.18
Citizen Bank Call A/c 352,476.83 28,930.95
Total 358,587.92 1,111,112.69
<» Al Rgpoid Book
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2070 (July 15, 2013)

Schedule -9 and 10

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts :

1

Organisation :

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited is registered under Company Act, 2063 to carry out life
insurance activities in Nepal. The Company is yet to obtain license from Insurance Board of Nepal
to conduct life Insurance transactions. It has yet to start its commercial operation.

Basis of Preparation :

The financial Statement are prepared on accrual basis of accounting, which presents financial
position , statement of pre-operating income /expenditure account and cash flows in accordance
with generally accepted principles and Nepal Accounting Standards. As the company is yet commence
its commercial operation, a Statement of Pre- Operating Income-Expenditure is prepared instead
of profit and loss account.

Cash & Cash Equivalent :
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash held in financial institutions.

Income Taxes :
Income tax is computed at 25% of operating profit.

Revunue Recognition :

Since the Company has not come into commercial operation till date, the sole income is from the
interest income from deposits in commercial banks and financial institutions. Interest income is
accounted for on accrual basis of accounting. All interests accrued up to Ashad 31 2070 have been
received.

Pre-Operation Expenses :
As the Company has not come into commercial operation, basic salary expenses and petty expenses
are incurred till date. Expenditures are accounted for on accrual basis of accounting.

Fixed Assets & Depreciation :
All the assets have been written off in prior year.

Re-Grouping :
Figures are heading of previous year re-grouped as necessary to provide a more accuracy, transparency
and clarity.
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Subodh Uniform Complex

Deoki Bijay & Co. 3rd Floor, Kalika Sthan

Chartered Accountants Ward No. 32, Dilli Bazar
Post Box: 25041

ICAN Firm Regn. No. 14 Kathmandu.

TPIN 500074651 Ph. +977-1-2297212

E-mail: ca.dbcnepal@gmail.com

Independent Auditors' Report
to the Shareholders’ of
Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of M/s Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd. as of Ashad 32,
2071 (July 16, 2014) and Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
attached thereto, for the year ended on that date and a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and
other Explanatory Notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for our audit opinion.

Report on requirement of Companies Act, 2063 and other regulatory matters

a. We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of such books;

(3} In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and

books of account maintained by the company;




Deoki Bijay & Co.
Chartered Accountants

d. In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
Company has been conducted satisfactorily; and

e. To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company necessary for the purposes of the
audit, we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of
the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed
any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the company.

Auditors’ Opinion

In our opinion, the Financial Statements, read together with Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to
the Accounts in Schedule 9 forming part of the accounts, give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at Ashad 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014) and the financial performance, changes in equity
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with applicable Nepal Accounting Standards and
comply with provisions of the Companies Act, 2063.

&

C.S. Deo, FCA
Partner
Kathmandu For: Deoki Bijay & Co.
Date: 9 oYy \ \ -)_\ 0) Chartered Accgtﬂgﬂts
/A3 BUAP N




Gtizen Life

Insurance

Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet
As on Ashad 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014)

As on As on
Particulars Schedules Ashad 32, 2071 | Ashad 31, 2070
(July 16, 2014) | (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
Assets
Non Current Assets :
Fixed Assets - -
Deferred Tax Assets - -
Total Non-Current Assets - -
Current Assets :
Sundry Debtors
Cash and Bank Balances 1 17,344,143.46 17,499,069.53
Advances & Deposits 2 1,000.00 221,455.08
17,345,143.46 17,720,524.61
Total Assets 17,345,143.46 17,720,524.61
Capital & Liabilities
Equity :
Share Capital 3 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserves & Surplus :
Income Statement Balances 4 3,483,163.46 3,511,613.46
Total Equity 17,308,163.46 17,336,613.46
Liabilities :
Current liabilities :
Sundry Creditors & Other Payables 5 36,980.00 94,033.00
Provisions 6 - 289,878.15
36,980.00 383,911.15
Total Capital & Liabilities 17,345,143.46 17,720,524.61
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 9
For & on behalf of the Board As per our attached report of even date.
Pradip Jung Pandey Rajendra Prasad Shrestha Anil Dhungel Khem Prasad Baral
Chairman Director Director Director
Sumit Kumar Agrawal Poshak Raj Paudel Dip Bahadur B.C. C.S. Deo, FCA
Director Chief Executive Officer Assistant General Managar Partner
Deoki Bijay & Co.
Date : 2074/12/01 Chartered Accountants

Place : Kathmandu

< Al Fegpond Book
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itizen Life
Insurance
Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.
Income Statement
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Schedule Ashad 32, 2071 Ashad 31, 2070
(July 16, 2014) (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
Income
Sales - -
Other Income 7 - 358,587.92
Total Income - 358,587.92
Expenditure
Administrative Expenses 8 28,450.00 36,500.00
Depreciation - -
Total Expenditure 28,450.00 36,500.00
Net Profit before Tax (28,450.00) 322,087.92
Less: Tax Expenses :
Income Tax - 80,521.98
Deferred Tax - -
Profit after Tax (28,450.00) 241,565.94
Balance Upto Last Year 3,511,613.46 3,270,047.52
Balance Transferred to Reserve & Surplus 3,483,163.46 3,511,613.46
Earning Per Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each NRS NRS
Basic (0.21) 1.75
Diluted (0.21) 1.75
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 9

For & on behalf of the Board

As per our attached report of even date.

Pradip Jung Pandey Rajendra Prasad Shrestha Anil Dhungel Khem Prasad Baral
Chairman Director Director Director
Sumit Kumar Agrawal Poshak Raj Paudel Dip Bahadur B.C. C.S. Deo, FCA
Director Chief Executive Officer Assistant General Managar Partner

Deoki Bijay & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date :2074/12/01
Place : Kathmandu

Al Fgrond Book O
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Ashad 32, 2071 | Ashad 31, 2070
(July 16, 2014) | (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Net Profit Before Tax (28,450.00) 322,087.92
Adjustment for :
Depreciation - -
Interest Income - (358,587.92)
Provision For Tax - (80,521.98)
Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital (28,450.00) (117,021.98)
Changes in Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Sundry Debtors - -
Decrease/(Increase) in Advances & Deposits 220,455.08 (53,788.18)
Increase/(Decrease) in Sundry Creditors & Other Payables (57,053.00) 35,000.00
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (289,878.15) 80,521.98
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (154,926.07) (55,288.18)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Interest Income Received - 358,587.92

Decrease/(Increase) in Investment - -

Decrease/(Increase) in Fixed Assets - -
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities - 358,587.92

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities :

Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital - -
Dividend Paid - -

Interest paid - -

Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities - -

Total Cash Flows from All Activities (A+B+C) (154,926.07) 303,299.74
Opening Cash & Bank Balances 17,499,069.53 17,195,769.79
Closing Cash & Bank Balances 17,344,143.46 17,499,069.53

< Al Fegpond Book
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itizenLife
Insurance
Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014)
Particulars Share Capital EZ:‘:‘]'I’;: Total
(NRS) (NRS) (NRS)
Opening Balance 13,825,000.00 3,511,613.46 17,336,613.46
Changes in Accounting Policy - - -
Restated Balance 13,825,000.00 3,511,613.46 17,336,613.46
Profit for the Year - (28,450.00) (28,450.00)
Transferred to General Reserves - - -
Shares Issued - - -
Closing Balance 13,825,000.00 3,483,163.46 17,308,163.46

CHwuwil Wﬁmﬁ
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules Forming Part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014)

Cash & Bank Balances Schedule - 1
As on As on
. Ashad 32, 2071 | Ashad 31, 2070
Particulars
(July 16, 2014) (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
Cash in Hand (As certified by the Management) 806.57 806.57
Balances with Banks :
Citizen Bank Ltd (Current A/c 0010000573) 17,343,336.89 17,498,262.96
Total 17,344,143.46 17,499,069.53
Advances & Deposits Schedule - 2
As on As on
. Ashad 32, 2071 | Ashad 31, 2070
Particulars
(July 16, 2014) (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
Advance Income Tax - 220,455.08
Post Office Deposit 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total 1,000.00 221,455.08
Share Capital Schedule - 3
As on As on
) Ashad 32, 2071 | Ashad 31, 2070
Particulars
(July 16, 2014) (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
Authorised :
7,200,000 Shares @ 100 each 720,000,000.00 | 720,000,000.00
Issued :
3,600,000 Shares @ 100 each 360,000,000.00 | 360,000,000.00
Subscribed & Paid Up :
138,250 Shares @ 100 each 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Total 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserve & Surplus Schedule - 4
As on As on
. Ashad 32, 2071 | Ashad 31, 2070
Particulars
(July 16, 2014) (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
Income Statement Balance 3,483,163.46 3,511,613.46
Total 3,483,163.46 3,511,613.46

9c Cwuucl Wﬁmﬁ



Sundry Creditors & Other Payables

Citizen

Insurance

Schedule -5

As on As on
Ashad 32, 2071 | Ashad 31, 2070

Particulars
(July 16, 2014) (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
Sundry Creditors - -
Audit Fee Payable 27,875.00 54,400.00
TDS Payable on Audit Fee 375.00 600.00
TDS Payable on Legal & Consultancy Fee - 30,000.00
TDS Payable on Salary - 303.00
G & G Associates 8,730.00 8,730.00
Total 36,980.00 94,033.00
Provisions Schedule -6
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 32, 2071 | Ashad 31, 2070
(July 16, 2014) (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
Income Tax - 289,878.15
Other Provisions - -
Total - 289,878.15
Provisions Schedule -7
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 32, 2071 | Ashad 31, 2070
(July 16, 2014) (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
Interest Income :
Siddhartha Finance - 6,111.09
Citizen Bank Call A/c - 352,476.83
Total - 358,587.92
Administrative Expenses Schedule - 8
As on As on
. Ashad 32, 2071 | Ashad 31, 2070
Particulars
(July 16, 2014) (July 15, 2013)
(NRS) (NRS)
Audit Fee (Including VAT) 28,250.00 20,000.00
Audit Expenses - 15,000.00
Bank Charges 200.00 1,500.00
Total 28,450.00 36,500.00

N
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 32, 2071 (July 16, 2014)

Schedule -9

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts

A. General Information :
Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd. (The "Company") is incorporated under Companies Act of Nepal vide
Registration No. 1004/063-064 on 2064-03-12 as a public company. The registered office of the
company is at Thapathali - 11, Kathmandu, Nepal. The main objectives of company are to provide
insurance and related services.

B. Significant Accounting Policies :

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Accounting Convention:

The finOancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an
accrual basis and are in compliance with all material aspects with Nepal Accounting Standards,
unless stated otherwise, and relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2063 and other applicable
laws prevalent in Nepal. The accounting Policies are applied consistently by the Company.

Use of Estimates :

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periods in which the
results are known/materialized.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation:
3.1 Fixed Assets :

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction inclusive of freight, duty,
taxes and other incidental expenses incurred in putting all the assets to use.
All the assets have been written off in Prior Year.

3.2 Depreciation:
Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on Diminishing Balance method as per
the rates & method prescribed in Income Tax Act, 2058. This accounting policy is not
in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

Going Concern:

The Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Cash and Bank Balances:

Cash and bank balances comprises cash in hand and balances with Banks as on Balance
Sheet date. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management are shown as short term loans in current liabilities in the
Balance Sheet.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be
reliably measured.

£ - S Al Koyt Book
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Since the company has not come into commercial operation, the sole income is from the
interest from deposits in commercial banks and financial institutions. Interest Income is

accounted on accural basis of accounting.

7) Trade and other Receivables:
Trade and other Receivables are originated by the Company and are stated at cost less
provisions for any uncollectible amount. Provision is made against debts considered doubtful
of recovery whereas debts considered irrecoverable are written off.

8)  Trade and other payables:
Liability for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of goods &
services.

9) Provisions:
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
event; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted
to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

10) Taxation:

a) Current Tax:
Current Income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
in accordance with Nepalese Income Tax Act, 2058.

b) Deferred Tax:
Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between
taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences
of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet Date. Deferred tax assets are
recognized and reviewed at each Balance Sheet Date, only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed
depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized
against future taxable profits. At each Balance Sheet Date, unrecognized deferred tax
assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognized to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

11) Cash Flow Statements:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted

for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or

future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing

and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Cash flow statement is separately

attached with the Financial Statements of the company.

12) Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies:
The prior period expenses are charged to the Income Statement. There is no change in the
accounting policy during the year.

Al Koyt Book I < 3
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C. Notes to the Accounts:
1) Income Tax:

a) Tax expenses comprises of Current, and Deferred Tax. Current Tax has been made as
per the provisions of Nepal Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred Income Taxes, if any, reflects
the impact of current years timing differences between taxable income for the year
and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

b) Income tax has been provided as per Income Tax Act, 2058.

2) Deferred Tax:
Recognition of Deferred Tax Liability & Assets:
Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the Balance Sheet date as per the Nepal Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting
Standards Boards of Nepal. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there
is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets are realized.

Balance as at
Ashad 32, 2071
(NRS)

Balance as on
Shrawan 1, 2070
(NRS)

Arising during
the year
(NRS)

Particulars

Deferred Tax Assets

On account of timing

a) Fixed Assets - - -
Net Assets / (Liabilities) - - ,

3) Earnings per share:
Earning per share has been calculated as below:

Particulars of Earnings Per Share Current Year Previous Year
Profit after tax for the year (Rs.) (28,450.00) 241,565.94
Weighted average no. of equity shares (Units) 138,250 138,250
Diluted number of equity shares (Units) 138,250 138,250
Nominal value of shares (Rs.) 100.00 100.00
Basic Earning per share (Rs.) (0.21) 1.75
Diluted Earning per share (Rs.) (0.21) 1.75

The company has not issued any potential equity shares and accordingly, the basic and diluted

earnings per share are the same.

4) Miscellaneous:
i) All amounts are stated in Nepalese Rupees.

ii) Previous Year figures are re-grouped and re-arranged as necessary.

iii)  Schedule 1 to 9 form the integral part of Balance Sheet and Income Statement.

K =2 S ——
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M.K. Sah & Associates Address:

Sukedhara, Ward No. 4
Chartered Accountants House No. 451

Kathmandu, Nepal

Ph: 01-4439445

email: associatesmksah@gmail.com

Independent Auditors' Report
to the Shareholders’ of
Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of M/s Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd. as of Ashad 31,
2072 (July 16, 2015) and Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
attached thereto, for the year ended on that date and a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and
other Explanatory Notes.

Management's Responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for our audit opinion.

Report on requirement of Companies Act, 2063 and other regulatory matters

a. We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of such books;

G: In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity with Explanatory Notes dealt with by this report are in
compliance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2063 and are in agreement with the

books of account maintained by the company, A, ppetiinng
il
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M.K. Sah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

d. In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
Company has been conducted satisfactorily; and

e. To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company necessary for the purposes of the
audit, we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of
the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed
any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the company.

Auditors’ Opinion

In our opinion, the Financial Statements, read together with Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to
the Accounts in Schedule 7 forming part of the accounts, give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at Ashad 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015) and the financial performance, changes in equity
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with applicable Nepal Accounting Standards and
comply with provisions of the Companies Act, 2063.

4

M.K. Sah & Associates

Proprietor
Kathmandu For: M.K. Sah & Associates
Date: 203U \ 1 1\ o\ Chartered Ac/cggfltapt?
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet
As on Ashad 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015)

As on As on
Particulars Schedule Ashad 31,2072 | Ashad 32, 2071
(July 16, 2015) | (July 16, 2014)
(NRS) (NRS)
Assets
Non Current Assets :
Fixed Assets - -
Deferred Tax Assets - -
Total Non-Current Assets - -
Current Assets :
Sundry Debtors
Cash and Bank Balances 1 17,344,043.46 17,344,143.46
Advances & Deposits 2 1,000.00 1,000.00
17,345,043.46 17,345,143.46
Total Assets 17,345,043.46 17,345,143.46
Capital & Liabilities
Equity :
Share Capital 3 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserves & Surplus:
Income Statement Balances 4 3,454,813.46 3,483,163.46
Total Equity 17,279,813.46 17,308,163.46
Liabilities :
Current liabilities:
Sundry Creditors & Other Payables 5 65,230.00 36,980.00
Provisions - -
65,230.00 36,980.00
Total Capital & Liabilities 17,345,043.46 17,345,143.46
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7
For & on behalf of the Board As per our attached report
Pradip Jung Pandey Rajendra Prasad Shrestha Anil Dhungel Khem Prasad Baral
Chairman Director Director Director
Sumit Kumar Agrawal Poshak Raj Paudel Dip Bahadur B.C. M.K. Sah & Associates
Director Chief Executive Officer Assistant General Managar Chartered Accountants
Date :2074/12/01 CA. M.K. Sah
Place : Kathmandu Proprietor
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Income Statement
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015)

Year ended Year ended
. Ashad 31, 2072 | Ashad 32, 2071
Particulars Schedules
(July 16, 2015) | (July 16, 2014)
(NRS) (NRS)
Income
Sales - -
Other Income - -
Total Income = =
Expenditure
Administrative Expenses 6 28,350.00 28,450.00
Depreciation - -
Total Expenditure 28,350.00 28,450.00
Net Profit before Tax (28,350.00) (28,450.00)
Less: Tax Expenses :
Income Tax - -
Deferred Tax - -
Profit after Tax (28,350.00) (28,450.00)
Balance Upto Last Year 3,483,163.46 3,511,613.46
Balance Transferred to Reserve & Surplus 3,454,813.46 3,483,163.46
Earning Per Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each NRS NRS
Basic (0.21) (0.21)
Diluted (0.21) (0.21)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7
For & on behalf of the Board As per our attached report
Pradip Jung Pandey Rajendra Prasad Shrestha Anil Dhungel Khem Prasad Baral
Chairman Director Director Director
Sumit Kumar Agrawal Poshak Raj Paudel Dip Bahadur B.C. M.K. Sah & Associates
Director Chief Executive Officer Assistant General Managar Chartered Accountants
CA. M.K. Sah
Date :2074/12/01 Proprietor

Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Ashad 31, 2072 | Ashad 32, 2071
(July 16, 2015) | (July 16, 2014)
(NRS) (NRS)

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Net Profit Before Tax (28,350.00) (28,450.00)

Adjustment for :

Depreciation - -

Interest Income - -

Provision For Tax - -

Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital (28,350.00) (28,450.00)

Changes in Working Capital

Decrease/(Increase) in Sundry Debtors - -

Decrease/(Increase) in Advances & Deposits - -

Increase/(Decrease) in Sundry Creditors & Other Payables 28,250.00 (57,053.00)

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions - (69,423.07)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (100.00) (154,926.07)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :

Interest Income Received - -

Decrease/(Increase) in Investment - -

Decrease/(Increase) in Fixed Assets - -

Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities - -
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities :

Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital - -

Dividend Paid - -

Interest paid - -
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities - -
Total Cash Flows from All Activities (A+B+C) (100.00) (154,926.07)
Opening Cash & Bank Balances 17,344,143.46 17,499,069.53
Closing Cash & Bank Balances 17,344,043.46 17,344,143.46
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015)
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Particulars Share Capital I;:t?\::\?sj Total
(NRS) (NRS) (NRS)
Opening Balance 13,825,000.00 3,483,163.46 17,308,163.46
Changes in Accounting Policy - - -
Restated Balance 13,825,000.00 3,483,163.46 17,308,163.46
Profit for the Year - (28,350.00) (28,350.00)
Transferred to General Reserves - - -
Shares Issued - - -
Closing Balance 13,825,000.00 3,454,813.46 17,279,813.46
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015)

Cash & Bank Balances Schedule - 1
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2072 | Ashad 32, 2071
(July 16, 2015) | (July 16, 2014)
(NRS) (NRS)
Cash in Hand (As certified by the Management) 806.57 806.57
Balances with Banks :
Citizen Bank Ltd (Current A/c 0010000573) 17,343,236.89 17,343,336.89
Total 17,344,043.46 17,344,143.46
Advances & Deposits Schedule - 2
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2072 | Ashad 32, 2071
(July 16, 2015) | (July 16, 2014)
(NRS) (NRS)
Advance Income Tax - -
Post Office Deposit 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total 1,000.00 1,000.00
Share Capital Schedule - 3
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2072 | Ashad 32, 2071
(July 16, 2015) | (July 16, 2014)
(NRS) (NRS)
Authorised :
7,200,000 Shares @ 100 each 720,000,000.00 | 720,000,000.00
Issued :
3,600,000 Shares @ 100 each 360,000,000.00 | 360,000,000.00
Subscribed & Paid Up :
138,250 Shares @ 100 each 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Total 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserve & Surplus Schedule - 4
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2072 | Ashad 32, 2071
(July 16, 2015) | (July 16, 2014)
(NRS) (NRS)
Income Statement Balance 3,454,813.46 3,483,163.46
Total 3,454,813.46 3,483,163.46
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Sundry Creditors & Other Payables Schedule -5
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2072 | Ashad 32, 2071
(July 16, 2015) (July 16, 2014)
(NRS) (NRS)
Audit Fee Payable 55,750.00 27,875.00
TDS Payable on Audit Fee 750.00 375.00
G & G Associates 8,730.00 8,730.00
Total 65,230.00 36,980.00
Administrative Expenses Schedule -6
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2072 | Ashad 32, 2071
(July 16, 2015) | (July 16, 2014)
(NRS) (NRS)
Audit Fee (Including VAT) 28,250.00 28,250.00
Bank Charges 100.00 200.00
Total 28,350.00 28,450.00
Al Fegpoad Book I <1
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2072 (July 16, 2015)

Schedule -7

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts

A. General Information:
Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd. (The "Company") is incorporated under Companies Act of Nepal vide
Registration No. 1004/063-064 on 2064-03-12 as a public company. The registered office of the
company is at Thapathali - 11, Kathmandu, Nepal. The main objectives of company are to provide
insurance and related services.

B. Significant Accounting Policies:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Accounting Convention:

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an
accrual basis and are in compliance with all material aspects with Nepal Accounting Standards,
unless stated otherwise, and relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2063 and other applicable
laws prevalent in Nepal. The accounting Policies are applied consistently by the Company.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periods in which the
results are known/materialized.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

3.1 Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction inclusive of freight, duty,
taxes and other incidental expenses incurred in putting all the assets to use.

All the assets have been written off in Prior Year.

3.2 Depreciation:
Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on Diminishing Balance method as per
the rates & method prescribed in Income Tax Act, 2058. This accounting policy is not
in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

Going Concern:
The Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Cash and Bank Balances:

Cash and bank balances comprises cash in hand and balances with Banks as on Balance
Sheet date. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management are shown as short term loans in current liabilities in the
Balance Sheet.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be
reliably measured.
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Since the company has not come into commercial operation, the sole income is from the
interest from deposits in commercial banks and financial institutions. Interest Income is

accounted on accural basis of accounting.

7) Trade and other Receivables :
Trade and other Receivables are originated by the Company and are stated at cost less
provisions for any uncollectible amount. Provision is made against debts considered doubtful
of recovery whereas debts considered irrecoverable are written off.

8)  Trade and other payables:
Liability for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of goods &
services.

9) Provisions :
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
event; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted
to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

10) Taxation:

a) Current Tax:
Current Income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
in accordance with Nepalese Income Tax Act, 2058.

b) Deferred Tax:
Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between
taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences
of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet Date. Deferred tax assets are
recognized and reviewed at each Balance Sheet Date, only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed
depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized
against future taxable profits. At each Balance Sheet Date, unrecognized deferred tax
assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognized to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

11) Cash Flow Statements :
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or
future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Cash flow statement is separately
attached with the Financial Statements of the company.

12) Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies :
The prior period expenses are charged to the Income Statement. There is no change in the
accounting policy during the year.
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C. Notes to the Accounts :
1) Income Tax :

a) Tax expenses comprises of Current, and Deferred Tax. Current Tax has been made as
per the provisions of Nepal Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred Income Taxes, if any, reflects
the impact of current years timing differences between taxable income for the year

and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

b) Income tax has been provided as per Income Tax Act, 2058.

2) Deferred Tax :
Recognition of Deferred Tax Liability & Assets:

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the Balance Sheet date as per the Nepal Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting
Standards Boards of Nepal. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there
is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which

such deferred tax assets are realized.

Balance as on
Shrawan 1, 2070
(NRS)

Particulars

Arising during
the year
(NRS)

Balance as at
Ashad 32, 2071
(NRS)

Deferred Tax Assets /(Liabilities)

On account of timing difference in :

a) Fixed Assets -

Net Assets / (Liabilities) -

3) Earnings per share :
Earning per share has been calculated as below:

Particulars of earnings per share

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit after tax for the year (Rs.) (28,350.00) (28,450.00)
Weighted average no. of equity shares (Units) 138,250 138,250
Diluted number of equity shares (Units) 138,250 138,250
Nominal value of shares (Rs.) 100.00 100.00
Basic Earning per share (Rs.) (0.21) (0.21)
Diluted Earning per share (Rs.) (0.21) (0.21)

The company has not issued any potential equity shares and accordingly, the basic and diluted

earnings per share are the same.

4) Miscellaneous:
i) All amounts are stated in Nepalese Rupees.

ii) Previous Year figures are re-grouped and re-arranged as necessary.

iii)  Schedule 1 to 7 form the integral part of Balance Sheet and Income Statement.
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M.K. Sah & Associates Addrass:
Sukedhara, Ward No. 4
Chartered Accountants House No. 451
Kathmandu, Nepal
Ph: 01-4439445
email: associatesmksah@gmail.com

Independent Auditors' Report
to the Shareholders’ of
Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of M/s Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd. as of Ashad 31,
2073 (July 15, 2016) and Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
attached thereto, for the year ended on that date and a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and -
other Explanatory Notes.

Management’'s Responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for our audit opinion.

Report on requirement of Companies Act, 2063 and other regulatory matters

a. We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of such books;

c. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity with Explanatory Notes dealt with by this report are in
compliance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2063 and are in agreemg{l\ﬁ'@ﬁtﬂ the,
books of account maintained by the company; " %




M_K. Sah & Associates

Chartered Accountants

d. In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
Company has been conducted satisfactorily; and

e To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company necessary for the purposes of the
audit, we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of
the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed
any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the company.

Awpditors’ Opinion

" our opinion, the Financial Statements, read together with Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to
= Accounts in Schedule 7 forming part of the accounts, give a true and fair view of the financial position
of Te Company as at Ashad 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016) and the financial performance, changes in equity
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with applicable Nepal Accounting Standards and
comoly with provisions of the Companies Act, 2063.
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M.K. Sah & Associates
Proprietor
K=shmandu For: M.K. Sah & Associates
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet
As on Ashad 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016)

As on As on
Particulars Schedule Ashad 31, 2073 | Ashad 31, 2072
(July 15,2016) | (July 16, 2015)
(NRS) (NRS)

Assets
Non Current Assets :
Fixed Assets - -
Deferred Tax Assets - -
Total Non-Current Assets - -
Current Assets :
Sundry Debtors
Cash and Bank Balances 17,343,943.46 17,344,043.46
Advances & Deposits 2 1,000.00 1,000.00

17,344,943.46 17,345,043.46
Total Assets 17,344,943.46 17,345,043.46
Capital & Liabilities
Equity :
Share Capital 3 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserves & Surplus :
Income Statement Balances 4 3,426,463.46 3,454,813.46
Total Equity 17,251,463.46 17,279,813.46
Liabilities :
Current liabilities :
Sundry Creditors & Other Payables 5 93,480.00 65,230.00
Provisions - -

93,480.00 65,230.00

Total Capital & Liabilities 17,344,943.46 17,345,043.46

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7
For & on behalf of the Board

Pradip Jung Pandey
Chairman

Rajendra Prasad Shrestha
Director

Anil Dhungel
Director

Sumit Kumar Agrawal
Director

Poshak Raj Paudel
Chief Executive Officer

Dip Bahadur B.C.
Assistant General Managar

Date :2074/12/01
Place : Kathmandu
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As per our attached report.

Khem Prasad Baral

Director

M.K. Sah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. M.K. Sah

Proprietor
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Income Statement
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Schedule Ashad 31, 2073 | Ashad 31, 2072
(July 15,2016) | (July 16, 2015)
(NRS) (NRS)
Income
Sales - -
Other Income - -
Total Income = =
Expenditure
Administrative Expenses 6 28,350.00 28,350.00
Depreciation - -
Total Expenditure 28,350.00 28,350.00
Net Profit before Tax (28,350.00) (28,350.00)
Less: Tax Expenses :
Income Tax - -
Deferred Tax - -
Profit after Tax (28,350.00) (28,350.00)
Balance Upto Last Year 3,454,813.46 3,483,163.46
Balance Transferred to Reserve & Surplus 3,426,463.46 3,454,813.46
Earning Per Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each NRS NRS
Basic (0.21) (0.21)
Diluted (0.21) (0.21)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 7
For & on behalf of the Board As per our attached report.
Pradip Jung Pandey Rajendra Prasad Shrestha Anil Dhungel Khem Prasad Baral
Chairman Director Director Director
Sumit Kumar Agrawal Poshak Raj Paudel Dip Bahadur B.C. M.K. Sah & Associates
Director Chief Executive Officer Assistant General Managar Chartered Accountants
CA. M.K. Sah
Date :2074/12/01 Proprietor

Place : Kathmandu
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016)

Particulars

Year ended
Ashad 31, 2073
(July 15, 2016)
(NRS)

Year ended
Ashad 31, 2072
(July 16, 2015)
(NRS)

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Net Profit Before Tax

(28,350.00)

(28,350.00)

Adjustment for :

Depreciation

Interest Income

Provision For Tax

Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital

(28,350.00)

(28,350.00)

Changes in Working Capital

Decrease/(Increase) in Sundry Debtors

Decrease/(Increase) in Advances & Deposits

Increase/(Decrease) in Sundry Creditors & Other Payables

28,250.00

28,250.00

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

(100.00)

(100.00)

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :

Interest Income Received

Decrease/(Increase) in Investment

Decrease/(Increase) in Fixed Assets

Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities :

Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital

Dividend Paid

Interest paid

Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Total Cash Flows from All Activities (A+B+C)

(100.00)

(100.00)

Opening Cash & Bank Balances

17,344,043.46

17,344,143.46

Closing Cash & Bank Balances

17,343,943.46

17,344,043.46
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016)

G

zenlife

Insurance

Particulars Share Capital E:::':\ZS Total
(NRS) (NRS) (NRS)
Opening Balance 13,825,000.00 3,454,813.46 17,279,813.46
Changes in Accounting Policy - - -
Restated Balance 13,825,000.00 3,454,813.46 17,279,813.46
Profit for the Year - (28,350.00) (28,350.00)
Transferred to General Reserves - - -
Shares Issued - - -
Closing Balance 13,825,000.00 3,426,463.46 17,251,463.46
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2073 (July 15, 2016)

Cash & Bank Balances Schedule - 1
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2073 | Ashad 31, 2072
(July 15,2016) | (July 16, 2015)
(NRS) (NRS)
Cash in Hand (As certified by the Management) 806.57 806.57
Balances with Banks :
Citizen Bank Ltd (Current A/c 0010000573) 17,343,136.89 17,343,236.89
Total 17,343,943.46 17,344,043.46
Advances & Deposits Schedule - 2
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2073 | Ashad 31, 2072
(July 15,2016) | (July 16, 2015)
(NRS) (NRS)
Advance Income Tax - -
Post Office Deposit 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total 1,000.00 1,000.00
Share Capital Schedule - 3
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2073 | Ashad 31, 2072
(July 15,2016) | (July 16, 2015)
(NRS) (NRS)
Authorised :
7,200,000 Shares @ 100 each 720,000,000.00 | 720,000,000.00
Issued :
3,600,000 Shares @ 100 each 360,000,000.00 | 360,000,000.00
Subscribed & Paid Up :
138,250 Shares @ 100 each 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Total 13,825,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserve & Surplus Schedule - 4
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2073 | Ashad 31, 2072
(July 15, 2016) | (July 16, 2015)
(NRS) (NRS)
Income Statement Balance 3,426,463.46 3,454,813.46
Total 3,426,463.46 3,454,813.46
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Sundry Creditors & Other Payables

Schedule -5

As on
Ashad 31, 2073

As on
Ashad 31, 2072

T (July 15,2016) | (July 16, 2015)
(NRS) (NRS)
Sundry Creditors - -
Audit Fee Payable 83,625.00 55,750.00
TDS Payable on Audit Fee 1,125.00 750.00
G & G Associates 8,730.00 8,730.00
Total 93,480.00 65,230.00
Administrative Expenses Schedule - 6
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2073 | Ashad 31, 2072
(July 15,2016) | (July 16, 2015)
(NRS) (NRS)
Audit Fee (Including VAT) 28,250.00 28,250.00
Bank Charges 100.00 100.00
Total 28,350.00 28,350.00
Al Koo Look I o:
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31 2073 (July 15, 2016)

Schedule -7

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts

A. General Information :
Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd. (The "Company") is incorporated under Companies Act of Nepal vide
Registration No. 1004/063-064 on 2064-03-12 as a public company. The registered office of the
company is at Thapathali - 11, Kathmandu, Nepal. The main objectives of company are to provide
insurance and related services.

B. Significant Accounting Policies :

1

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Accounting Convention :

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an
accrual basis and are in compliance with all material aspects with Nepal Accounting Standards,
unless stated otherwise, and relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2063 and other applicable
laws prevalent in Nepal. The accounting Policies are applied consistently by the Company.

Use of Estimates :

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periods in which the
results are known/materialized.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation :

3.1 Fixed Assets :
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction inclusive of freight, duty,
taxes and other incidental expenses incurred in putting all the assets to use.
All the assets have been written off in Prior Year.

3.2 Depreciation:
Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on Diminishing Balance method as per
the rates & method prescribed in Income Tax Act, 2058. This accounting policy is not
in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

Going Concern:
The Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Cash and Bank Balances:

Cash and bank balances comprises cash in hand and balances with Banks as on Balance
Sheet date. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management are shown as short term loans in current liabilities in the
Balance Sheet.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be
reliably measured.
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Since the company has not come into commercial operation, the sole income is from the
interest from deposits in commercial banks and financial institutions. Interest Income is
accounted on accural basis of accounting.

7) Trade and other Receivables:
Trade and other Receivables are originated by the Company and are stated at cost less
provisions for any uncollectible amount. Provision is made against debts considered doubtful
of recovery whereas debts considered irrecoverable are written off.

8)  Trade and other payables:
Liability for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of goods &
services.

9) Provisions:
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
event; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted
to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

10) Taxation:
a) Current Tax:
Current Income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
in accordance with Nepalese Income Tax Act, 2058.

b)  Deferred Tax:
Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between
taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences
of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet Date. Deferred tax assets are
recognized and reviewed at each Balance Sheet Date, only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed
depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized
against future taxable profits. At each Balance Sheet Date, unrecognized deferred tax
assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognized to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards

11) Cash Flow Statements:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or
future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Cash flow statement is separately
attached with the Financial Statements of the company.

12) Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies:
The prior period expenses are charged to the Income Statement. There is no change in the
accounting policy during the year.
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C. Notes to the Accounts:
1) Income Tax:

a) Tax expenses comprises of Current, and Deferred Tax. Current Tax has been made as
per the provisions of Nepal Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred Income Taxes, if any, reflects
the impact of current years timing differences between taxable income for the year
and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

b) Income tax has been provided as per Income Tax Act, 2058.

2) Deferred Tax:
Recognition of Deferred Tax Liability & Assets :
Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the Balance Sheet date as per the Nepal Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting
Standards Boards of Nepal. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there
is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets are realized.

Balance as on
Shrawan 1, 2072
(NRS)

Particulars

Arising during
the year
(NRS)

Balance as at
Ashad 32, 2073
(NRS)

Deferred Tax Assets /(Liabilities)

On account of timing difference in :

a) Fixed Assets -

Net Assets / (Liabilities) -

3) Earnings per share:
Earning per share has been calculated as below:

Particulars of earnings per share Current Year Previous Year
Profit after tax for the year (Rs.) (28,350.00) (28,350.00)
Weighted average no. of equity shares (Units) 138,250 138,250
Diluted number of equity shares (Units) 138,250 138,250
Nominal value of shares (Rs.) 100.00 100.00
Basic Earning per share (Rs.) (0.21) (0.21)
Diluted Earning per share (Rs.) (0.21) (0.21)

The company has not issued any potential equity shares and accordingly, the basic and diluted

earnings per share are the same.

4) Miscellaneous:
i) All amounts are stated in Nepalese Rupees.

ii) Previous Year figures are re-grouped and re-arranged as necessary.

iii)  Schedule 1 to 7 form the integral part of Balance Sheet and Income Statement.

£ o ——
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M.K. Sah & Associates Address:
ch d Sukedhara, Ward No. 4
artered Accountants House No. 451

Kathmandu, Nepal
Ph: 01-4439445

email: associatesmksah@gmail.com

Independent Auditors' Report
to the Shareholders’ of
Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of M/s Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd. as of Ashad 31,
2074 (July 15, 2017) and Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
attached thereto, for the year ended on that date and a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and -
other Explanatory Notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for our audit opinion.

Report on requirement of Companies Act, 2063 and other regulatory matters

a. We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of such books;

o In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity with Explanatory Notes dealt with by this report are in
compliance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2063 and are in agreement-with the._
books of account maintained by the company;
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M.K. Sah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

d. In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
" Company has been conducted satisfactorily; and

e. To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company necessary for the purposes of the
audit, we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of
the Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed
any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the company.

Auditors’ Opinion

In our opinion, the Financial Statements, read together with Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to
the Accounts in Schedule 11 forming part of the accounts, give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at Ashad 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017) and the financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with applicable Nepal Accounting Standards
and comply with provisions of the Companies Act, 2063.

A

M.K. Sah & Associates
Proprietor
Kathmandu For: M.K. Sah & Associates
Date: -2_0:}, u \ 11[ 8 ‘ Chartered Accountar_us
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Balance Sheet
As on Ashad 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017)

As on As on

Particulars Schedules Ashad 31, 2074 | Ashad 31, 2073

(July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)

(NRS) (NRS)

Assets
Non Current Assets :
Fixed Assets - -
Investments 1 950,000,000.00 -
Deferred Tax Assets - -
Total Non-Current Assets 950,000,000.00 -
Current Assets :
Sundry Debtors - -
Investments (Current) 2 170,000,000.00 -
Cash and Bank Balances 3 445,757,640.31 17,343,943.46
Advances, Deposits & Receivables 4 999,075.08 1,000.00

616,756,715.39 17,344,943.46
Total Assets 1,566,756,715.39 17,344,943.46
Capital & Liabilities
Equity :
Share Capital 5 1,559,100,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserves & Surplus :
Income Statement Balances 6 5,674,220.39 3,426,463.46
Total Equity 1,564,774,220.39 17,251,463.46
Liabilities :
Current liabilities :
Sundry Creditors & Other Payables 7 1,193,185.00 93,480.00
Provisions 8 789,310.00 -
Total Current liabilities 1,982,495.00 93,480.00
Total Capital & Liabilities 1,566,756,715.39 17,344,943.46
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 11

For & on behalf of the Board As per our attached report.
Pradip Jung Pandey Rajendra Prasad Shrestha Anil Dhungel Khem Prasad Baral

Chairman Director

Sumit Kumar Agrawal Poshak Raj Paudel

Director

Dip Bahadur B.C.

Director

M.K. Sah & Associates

Director Chief Executive Officer Assistant General Managar Chartered Accountants
Date :2074/12/01 CA. M.K. Sah
Place : Kathmandu Proprietor
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Income Statement
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017)

tizenlife

Insurance

Year ended Year ended
. Ashad 31, 2074 | Ashad 31, 2073
Particulars Schedules !
(July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Income
Sales - -
Other Income 9 4,129,221.93 -
Total Income 4,129,221.93 -
Expenditure
Administrative Expenses 10 1,092,155.00 28,350.00
Depreciation - -
Total Expenditure 1,092,155.00 28,350.00
Net Profit before Tax 3,037,066.93 (28,350.00)
Less: Tax Expenses:
Income Tax 789,310.00 -
Deferred Tax - -
Profit after Tax 2,247,756.93 (28,350.00)
Balance Upto Last Year 3,426,463.46 3,454,813.46
Balance Transferred to Reserve & Surplus 5,674,220.39 3,426,463.46
Earning Per Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each NRS NRS
Basic 1.80 (0.21)
Diluted 1.80 (0.21)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 11
For & on behalf of the Board As per our attached report.
Pradip Jung Pandey Rajendra Prasad Shrestha Anil Dhungel Khem Prasad Baral

Chairman Director

Director

Sumit Kumar Agrawal
Director

Poshak Raj Paudel
Chief Executive Officer

Dip Bahadur B.C.
Assistant General Managar

Date :2074/12/01
Place : Kathmandu

CHwuwil Wﬁmﬁ

Director

M.K. Sah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. M.K. Sah
Proprietor
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017)

Year ended
Ashad 31, 2074

Year ended
Ashad 31, 2073

Particulars (July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Net Profit Before Tax 3,037,066.93 (28,350.00)
Adjustment for :
Depreciation -
Interest Income (4,129,221.93) -
Provision For Tax (789,310.00) -
Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital (1,881,465.00) (28,350.00)
Changes in Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Sundry Debtors -
Decrease/(Increase) in Advances & Deposits (998,075.08) -
Increase/(Decrease) in Sundry Creditors & Other Payables 1,099,705.00 28,250.00
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 789,310.00 -
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (990,525.08) (100.00)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Interest Income Received 4,129,221.93 -
Decrease/(Increase) in Investment (1,120,000,000.00) -
Decrease/(Increase) in Fixed Assets -
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities (1,115,870,778.07) -
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital 1,545,275,000.00 -
Dividend Paid -
Interest paid -
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities 1,545,275,000.00 -
Total Cash Flows from All Activities (A+B+C) 428,413,696.85 (100.00)
Opening Cash & Bank Balances 17,343,943.46 17,344,043.46
Closing Cash & Bank Balances 445,757,640.31 17,343,943.46

K= S ——
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017)
Particulars Share Capital E::?\Iirr]\:: Total
(NRS) (NRS) (NRS)
Opening Balance 13,825,000.00 3,426,463.46 17,251,463.46
Changes in Accounting Policy - -
Restated Balance 13,825,000.00 3,426,463.46 17,251,463.46
Profit for the Year 2,247,756.93 2,247,756.93
Transferred to General Reserves - -
Shares Issued 1,545,275,000.00 - [1,545,275,000.00
Closing Balance 1,559,100,000.00 5,674,220.39 (1,564,774,220.39
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017)

Cash & Bank Balances Schedule - 1
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2074 | Ashad 31, 2073
(July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Cash in Hand (As certified by the Management) 806.57 806.57
Balances with Banks :
Nabil Bank Ltd. A/c n0.1701017501099 25,616.44 -
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. A/c n0.00101010326506 428,316,354.38 -
NMB Bank Ltd. A/c n0.00400600544798000001 53,561.64 -
Jyoti Development Bank Ltd. A/c n0.00100100096273000001 18,164.39 -
Citizen Bank Ltd A/c n0.0010000573CA 17,343,136.89 17,343,136.89
Total 445,757,640.31 17,343,943.46
Investments Schedule - 2
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2074 | Ashad 31, 2073
(July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Fixed Deposit - Prabhu Bank Ltd. 100,000,000.00 -
Fixed Deposit - NCC Bank Ltd. 150,000,000.00 -
Fixed Deposit - Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 250,000,000.00 -
Fixed Deposit - Civil Bank Ltd. 100,000,000.00 -
Fixed Deposit - NMB Bank Ltd. 100,000,000.00 -
Fixed Deposit - Prabhu Bank Ltd. 150,000,000.00 -
Fixed Deposit - Himalayan Bank Ltd. 100,000,000.00 -
Total 950,000,000.00 -
Investments (Cuttent) Schedule - 3
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2074 | Ashad 31, 2073
(July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Fixed Deposit - Nabil Bank Ltd. 50,000,000.00 -
Fixed Deposit - Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. 50,000,000.00 -
Fixed Deposit - Jyoti Development Bank Ltd. 20,000,000.00 -
Fixed Deposit - Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. 50,000,000.00 -
Total 170,000,000.00 -
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Advances, Deposits & Receivables Schedule - 4
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2074 | Ashad 31, 2073
(July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Advance Income Tax 614,246.31 -
Interest Income Receivable 374,828.77 -
Telephone Deposit 9,000.00 -
Post Office Deposit 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total 999,075.08 1,000.00
Share Capital Schedule - 5
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2074 | Ashad 31, 2073
(July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Authorised :
30,000,000 Shares @ 100 each 3,000,000,000.00 | 720,000,000.00
Issued :
25,000,000 Shares @ 100 each 2,500,000,000.00 | 360,000,000.00
Subscribed & Paid Up :
15,591,000 Shares @ 100 each 1,559,100,000.00 13,825,000.00
Total [1,559,100,000.00 13,825,000.00
Reserve & Surplus Schedule - 6
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2074 | Ashad 31, 2073
(July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Income Statement Balance 5,674,220.39 3,426,463.46
Total 5,674,220.39 3,426,463.46
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Sundry Creditors & Other Payables

Schedule -7

As on
Ashad 31, 2074

As on
Ashad 31, 2073

e (July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Sundry Creditors - -
Audit Fee Payable 111,500.00 83,625.00
TDS Payable on Audit Fee 1,500.00 1,125.00
TDS Payable on Rent 34,320.00 -
TDS Payable on Legal & Consultancy Fee 6,637.17 -
SST Payable on Salary 1,116.00 -
Payable to Staffs 110,455.00 -
PF Payable 7,180.00 -
Expenses Payable 602,866.83 -
Rent Payable 308,880.00 -
G & G Associates 8,730.00 8,730.00
Total 1,193,185.00 93,480.00
Provisions Schedule - 8
As on As on
Particulars Ashad 31, 2074 | Ashad 31, 2073
(July 15,2017) | (July 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Income Tax 789,310.00 -
Total 789,310.00 -
Other Income Schedule - 9
As on As on

Ashad 31, 2074

Ashad 31, 2073

Particulars (uly 15, 2017) (uly 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Interest Income from Fixed Deposit of Commercial Bank 692,465.76 -
Interest Income from Fixed Deposit of Development Bank 21,369.87 -
Interest Income Call A/c (Bank) 3,415,386.30 -
Total 4,129,221.93 -
£ — Ol Sigpod LBook
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Schedule - 10

Year ended
Ashad 31, 2074

Year ended
Ashad 31, 2073

Particulars (uly 15, 2017) (uly 15, 2016)
(NRS) (NRS)
Salaries 94,774.00 -
Allowances 20,387.00 -
PF Contribution 3,590.00 -
Communication 4,530.00 -
Audit Fee 28,250.00 28,250.00
Office expenses 12,904.00 -
Printing and stationary 15,000.00 -
Legal and Consultancy Fees 500,000.00 -
Bank Charge 27,950.00 100.00
House Rent 343,200.00 -
Travelling and Transportation 35,850.00 -
Fooding and Refreshment 5,720.00 -
Total 1,092,155.00 28,350.00
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Citizen Life Insurance Co.Ltd.

Schedules forming part of the Accounts
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2074 (July 15, 2017)

Schedule - 11

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts

A General Information:
Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd. (The "Company") is incorporated under Companies Act of Nepal vide
Registration No. 1004/063-064 on 2064-03-12 as a public company. The registered office of the
company is at Thapathali - 11, Kathmandu, Nepal. The main objectives of company are to provide
insurance and related services.

B. Significant Accounting Policies:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Accounting Convention:

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an
accrual basis and are in compliance with all material aspects with Nepal Accounting Standards,
unless stated otherwise, and relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2063 and other applicable
laws prevalent in Nepal. The accounting Policies are applied consistently by the Company.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periods in which the
results are known/materialized.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

3.1 Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction inclusive of freight, duty,
taxes and other incidental expenses incurred in putting all the assets to use.

All the assets have been written off in Prior Year.

3.2 Depreciation:
Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on Diminishing Balance method as per
the rates & method prescribed in Income Tax Act, 2058. This accounting policy is not
in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

Going Concern:
The Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Cash and Bank Balances:

Cash and bank balances comprises cash in hand and balances with Banks as on Balance
Sheet date. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management are shown as short term loans in current liabilities in the
Balance Sheet.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be
reliably measured.
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Since the company has not come into commercial operation, the sole income is from the
interest from deposits in commercial banks and financial institutions. Interest Income is

accounted on accural basis of accounting.

7) Trade and other Receivables :
Trade and other Receivables are originated by the Company and are stated at cost less
provisions for any uncollectible amount. Provision is made against debts considered doubtful
of recovery whereas debts considered irrecoverable are written off.

8)  Trade and other payables :
Liability for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of goods &
services.

9) Provisions :
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
event; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted
to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

10) Taxation:

a) Current Tax:
Current Income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
in accordance with Nepalese Income Tax Act, 2058.

b) Deferred Tax:

Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between
taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences
of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet Date. Deferred tax assets are
recognized and reviewed at each Balance Sheet Date, only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed
depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized
against future taxable profits. At each Balance Sheet Date, unrecognized deferred tax
assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognized to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards.

11) Cash Flow Statements:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or
future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Cash flow statement is separately
attached with the Financial Statements of the company.

12)  Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies:
The prior period expenses are charged to the Income Statement. There is no change in the
accounting policy during the year.
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Notes to the Accounts:
1)  Asthe company obtained the operating license in F/Y 2074/75, the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards instead of NRFS.

2) Income Tax:

a) Tax expenses comprises of Current, and Deferred Tax. Current Tax has been made as
per the provisions of Nepal Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred Income Taxes, if any, reflects
the impact of current years timing differences between taxable income for the year
and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

b) Income tax has been provided as per Income Tax Act, 2058.

3) Deferred Tax:
Recognition of Deferred Tax Liability & Assets :
Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the Balance Sheet date as per the Nepal Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting
Standards Boards of Nepal. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there
is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets are realized.

Balance as at
Ashad 31, 2074
(NRS)

Balance as on
Shrawan 1, 2073
(NRS)

Arising during
the year
(NRS)

Particulars

Deferred Tax Assets /(Liabilities)

On account of timing difference in :

a) Fixed Assets - - _
Net Assets / (Liabilities) - - _

4) Earnings per share:
Earning per share has been calculated as below :

Particulars of earnings per share Current Year Previous Year
Profit after tax for the year (Rs.) 2,247,756.93 (28,350.00)
Weighted average no. of equity shares (Units) 1,246,488 138,250
Diluted number of equity shares (Units) 1,246,488 138,250
Nominal value of shares (Rs.) 100.00 100.00
Basic Earning per share (Rs.) 1.80 (0.21)
Diluted Earning per share (Rs.) 1.80 (0.21)

The company has not issued any potential equity shares and accordingly, the basic and diluted

earnings per share are the same.

5) Miscellaneous:
i) All amounts are stated in Nepalese Rupees.

ii) Previous Year figures are re-grouped and re-arranged as necessary.

iii)  Schedule 1 to 11 form the integral part of Balance Sheet and Income Statement.
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Citizen Child Future Life Insurance Plan
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Citizen Regular Pay Endowment Insurance Plan
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